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General information

1.  General information
- Vietnamese name . Céng ty C6 phan Pau tu Phat trién Sai Gon Co.op
- English name . SaiGon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company
- Abbreviated name : SCID
- Stock symbol . SID
- Business registration : No. 0304921066, initially registered on 04/04/2007 and 13th
certificate amended on 08/12/2022, granted by the Ho Chi Minh City
Department of Planning and Investment
- Charter capital > VND 1,000,000,000,000 (One thousand billion VND)
- Owner's capital : VND 1,000,000,000,000 (One thousand billion VND)
- Head office : 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1,
Ho Chi Minh City
- Telephone . (84-28) 3836 0143
- Fax . (84-28) 3822 5457
- Website . https://scid.vn
- Email . info@scid-jsc.com
2.  Establishment and development process
»  Year 2007:
ra mét
AN AU TU
e Established under Business Registration Certificate No. 4103006339 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on 04/04/2007; initial charter
capital was VND 20 billion.
e 0On04/042007, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders decided to increase the
charter capital to VND 500 billion.
SCID 2
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e On22/12/2007, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders decided to increase the
charter capital to VND 1.000 billion.

e Completed construction and put into operation 07 Co.opmart supermarkets.
»  Year 2008:

e Signed a memorandum of understanding on a business cooperation contract with Mapletree
Corporation - Singapore (a member of Temasek Corporation).

e Completed construction and put into operation 07 Co.opmart supermarkets.
»  Year 2009:

e Received land allocation decision for the Tan Phong Project.
e Signed a business cooperation contract with Mapletree Corporation - Singapore.
e Completed construction and put into operation 09 Co.opmart supermarkets.

e The State Securities Commission and the Vietnam Association of Securities Business awarded
the Gold Cup “Prestigious Securities Brand 2009” and the title “Typical Public Company”.

> Year 2010:
C0.0P MART DONG HA
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e Received investment certificate for the Project “Development of Vietsin South Saigon
Commercial Complex”.

e Completed construction and put into operation 10 Co.opmart supermarkets, bringing the
total number of supermarkets in the system to 50 supermarkets.

e The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the City's Emulation Flag.

e The State Securities Commission and the Vietnam Association of Securities Business
awarded the Gold Cup “Prestigious Securities Brand 2010

> Year 2011:

(380

LE KHOI o 00 Ax

e Completed construction and put into operation 06 Co.opmart supermarkets.
e Started the project to expand Sense City Can Tho Shopping Mall.
»  Year 2012:

e Completed construction and put into operation 07 Co.opmart supermarkets.
e Prepared 09 feasible Co.opmart supermarket projects for the 2013 plan.
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e Implemented well the maintenance, warranty and repair plan for 50 Co.opmart supermarkets
as approved by the Board of Directors.

e Received Certificate of Merit from the Prime Minister.
> Year 2013:

e Successfully issued more than 25,5 million shares, increasing charter capital to VND 1.000 billion.
e Completed construction and put into operation 09 Co.opmart supermarkets.

e Prepared 08 feasible Co.opmart supermarket projects for the 2014 plan.

e Deployment of the Sense City Shopping Mall business model in Can Tho.

e  The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the Flag “Excellent Emulation Unitin 2013”.
»  Year 2014:

.:SCID_S__AI'QQNVC(')_QP
~ LEKHAITRUONG
NG TAM THUGNG MAI

TP.C4n Tho, 20.01.2014

e Completed the construction and put into operation Sense City Can Tho Shopping Mall with
a scale of over 22.000 m? and 06 Co.opmart supermarkets. Directly manage and operate
Sense City Can Tho Shopping Mall.

e Deploying the construction of Sense City Ben Tre Shopping Mall.

e Preparing 06 feasible Co.opmart supermarket projects for 2015.
SCID 5
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e Implementing securities registration at the Vietnam Securities Depository (VSD).

e The Company's Party cell was upgraded to a grassroots Party cell directly under the Party
Committee of the Ho Chi Minh City Union of Trading Cooperatives (Saigon Co.op).

> Year 2015:

e Opening of SC Vivo City Shopping Mall, belonging to a joint venture between the
Company and Mapletree Corporation.

e Completed construction, opened and put into operation Sense City Ben Tre Shopping Mall
with an area of over 15.000 m? and 07 Co.opmart supermarkets.

> Year 2016:

e  Opening the first modern market model with the name Sense Market, at Zone B - 23/9 Park
- Ho Chi Minh City.

e Completed the construction and put into operation 05 Co.opmart supermarkets.
e Completed the procedures to bring the Company's shares to trade on the Upcom exchange.
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e The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the Certificate of Merit “Successfully
completing the task for 02 consecutive years (2015, 2016) in the city's emulation movement”.

e  The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the Decision “Excellent labor collective”.
»  Year 2017:

P

o Officially opened the traditional market combining modern shopping and entertainment,
Sense Market.

e Opening of Sense City Ca Mau Shopping Mall with an area of over 18.000 m?,

e Officially put the Company's shares into trading on the Upcom exchange on 09/01/2017
with stock code SID, the opening price on the first trading day was VND 20.900/share.

e Completed the construction and put into operation 10 Co.opmart supermarkets.

e The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the Decision “Excellent labor
collective”.

> Year 2018:
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e  Completed the construction of Sense City Pham Van Dong Shopping Mall with an area of over
30.000 m?. This is the first Sense City Shopping Mall in Ho Chi Minh City.

e Completed the construction and put into operation 14 Co.opmart supermarkets.

e The People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City awarded the Certificate of Merit “Successfully
completing the task for 02 consecutive years (2017, 2018) in the city's emulation movement”.

> Year 2019:

SsEsmECiAg

Srw

e Officially opened and put into operation Sense City Pham Van Dong Shopping Mall at the

address: 240-242 Pham Van Dong, Hiep Binh Chanh Ward, Thu Duc District (now Thu
Duc City), Ho Chi Minh City.

e Together with Saigon Co.op signed a cooperation agreement with Dong Saigon Investment
Joint Stock Company DSG to invest in building Sense City Shopping Mall at the High-
Tech Park of Ho Chi Minh City, District 9 (now Thu Duc City), Ho Chi Minh City.

e Completed the construction and put into operation 08 Co.opmart supermarkets.
»  Year 2020:
e Completed the construction and put into operation 01 Co.opmart supermarket.

T T
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»  Year 2021:
e Completed the construction and put into operation Thang Loi Co.opmart supermarket.

e Inheriting the traditional cultural values of Saigon Co.op, the Company has continued and
spread the mission “For the community” through many social activities, sharing and
supporting tenants, joining hands to support food for people in isolated areas, and medical
equipment for doctors and medical staff on the front lines against the Covid-19 pandemic.

~ g
L | s
\ Ny

\ |

L

——

P 1 ’%& — < ] ! | \
o ——
= = | % . —
- -‘-'.‘-_u‘
S e nr‘\\i&.

2T gl s

> Year 2022:

e  Successfully organized the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, electing the Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors for the term of 2022 - 2027.

e Announced the 10-year Operation Orientation and models for new Shopping Malls.

e Organized a series of events to celebrate the Company's 15th anniversary.
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> Year 2023:

Completed the construction and officially inaugurated the Sense Market Cai Be Shopping
Mall with a scale of over 5.000 m?. This is the first new Shopping Mall model in Cai Be
Town, Cai Be District, Tien Giang Province.

Completed the construction and put into operation 02 Co.opmart supermarkets.

> Year 2024

Completed the construction and put into operation the Co.opmart Pham The Hien
supermarket.

Completed the construction and officially inaugurated the Charmant Suites Hotel in the
center of Can Tho City with a scale of 166 rooms with 6 room types designed according to
international standards, marking the 35-year journey of glory and pride of Saigon Co.op,
marking an important milestone and marking Saigon Co.op's first entry into the hotel
market, as a result of the high efforts to complete the important goals that Saigon Co.op
expects the Company to achieve after many years of accumulating experience in
investment, development, management and operation of real estate business.
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Business lines and locations of the business

Business lines: According to the Charter, the Company's business lines are as follows:

Real estate business, land use rights belonging to owners, users or lessees.
Architectural and related technical consulting activities.

Wholesale of other materials and installation equipment in construction.

Agents, brokers, and auctioneers of goods.

Other professional, scientific and technological activities.

Restaurants and mobile catering services.

Tour operation.

Booking services and support services related to advertising and organizing tours.
Installation of electrical systems.

Installation of water supply and drainage systems, heating and air conditioning systems.
Installation of other construction systems.

Completion of construction works.

Advertising.

Market research and public opinion surveys.

Organizing introductions and trade promotion.

Wholesale of machinery, equipment and other machine parts.

Wholesale of raw agricultural and forestry products (excluding wood, bamboo, and rattan)
and live animals.

Retail of food, beverages, cigarettes, and shisha with a large proportion in general business stores.
Processing and preserving vegetables and fruits.
Other manufacturing.

SCID
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o Retail of household appliances, beds, cabinets, tables, chairs and similar furniture, lights
and electric lamps, other household utensils in specialized stores.

e Retail of audiovisual equipment in specialized stores.

e Consulting, brokerage, auction of real estate, auction of land use rights.
e Supply and management of labor resources.

e Management consulting activities.

e Other support service activities related to transportation.

e Financial service support activities.

e  General support services.

e  General house cleaning.

e Industrial cleaning and specialized constructions.

e Landscape care and maintenance services.

e Comprehensive administrative and office services.

e  Construction of residential buildings.

e Construction of non-residential buildings.

e Construction of water supply and drainage projects.

e Demolition.

e  Site preparation.

e  Other specialized construction activities.

e  Construction of roads.

e Drainage and wastewater treatment.

e Construction of telecommunications and communications works.
e Construction of electrical works.

Of which, the main business lines accounting for over 10% of the Company's total revenue are:

e Investment in developing a network of Co.opmart supermarket chains, Shopping Malls -
complex areas.

e Investment in commercial real estate business.

»  Business location: The main business location, accounting for over 10% of the Company's total
revenue, is currently mainly concentrated in the Ho Chi Minh City area.

4.  Information about governance model, business organization and managerial apparatus
»  Governance model:

The Company is organized under the model of a joint-stock company operating in compliance
with the Law on Enterprise, other relevant laws and the Company's Charter with the General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Management.

e General Meeting of Shareholders:

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest authority of the Company. The Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders is held once a year. The Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders must be held within four months from the end of the financial year.
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e Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors is the body with full powers to exercise all rights in the name of
the Company except for the powers belonging to the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
business operations and affairs of the Company are subject to the supervision and direction of
the Board of Directors.

The Company's Board of Directors has 05 members, and the maximum term of each member is
05 years. Members of the Board of Directors may be re-elected with an unlimited number of terms.

The list of Board of Directors members is as follows:

1. Mr. Vu Anh Khoa Chairman
2. Mr. Pham Trung Kien Member
3. Mr. Le Truong Son Member
4. Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang Member
5. Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Member

e Board of Supervisors:

The Board of Supervisors is an agency directly under the General Meeting of Shareholders,
elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of Supervisors has the task of
checking the reasonableness and legality in the management of business operations and the
Company's financial statements.

The Company's Board of Supervisors consists of 03 members, and the maximum term of
each member is 05 years. Members of the Board of Supervisors may be re-elected with an
unlimited number of terms.

The list of Board of Supervisors members is as follows:

1. Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh Head of Board
2. Ms. Truong Phan Hoang Thy Member
3. Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh Member

e Board of Management:

The Board of Management is the executive body of the Company's business operations.
The General Director is the person with the highest responsibility before the General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the law regarding the entire business organization,
implementing measures to achieve the Company's development goals. The term of the General
Director is 03 years unless otherwise stipulated by the Board of Directors and may be
reappointed. The General Director is in charge of the Company's operations, the Resource
Division, and the Research and Development and the Foreign Joint Venture Division.

Assisting the General Director are 02 Deputy General Directors and functional
departments: 01 Deputy General Director in charge of the Real Estate Investment -
Development Division; 01 Deputy General Director in charge of the Commercial Real Estate
Operations Division.

The list of members of the Executive Board is as follows:

1. Mr. Pham Trung Kien General Director
2. Mr. Pham Hoang An Deputy General Director
3. Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Deputy General Director

SCID
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>  Management apparatus structure:
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Management.

The Company's functional departments perform specific daily tasks, assisting the Board of

Organization - Administration Department:

In charge of the Company's personnel organization work and member units.
In charge of administrative management, document archiving of the Company.
In charge of the Board of Management Secretariat and Company Secretary.

Finance - Planning Department:

In charge of financial - accounting work, advising on the assignment and management
of business plans for the Company's divisions, departments, and Shopping Malls.

In charge of financial investment and project appraisal.
Manage the information technology system.

Legal and Investor Relations Department:

In charge of tasks related to legal affairs.
Internal inspection and audit activities.

Manage tasks related to shareholders, securities activities, and external affairs
activities.

Business Development Department:

In charge of researching and developing business models for commercial real estate,
retail real estate, and mixed-use real estate.

Manage Concept and lease premises in the initial phase of new project launch; develop
framework programs for annual communication, advertising, marketing, and operating
regulations.

Manage, exploit, and analyze business databases of real estate business segments to
serve the Company's strategic research, build orientations, and business plans.

Real Estate Development Investment Department:

In charge of project management, assisting in the synchronous and consistent
implementation of managed projects from the stage of searching for premises,
surveying, researching, and advising on investment, preparing project legal procedures
until the completion of construction and putting the project into use, completing the
procedures for completion to apply for certificates of land use rights, ownership of
houses and other assets attached to land, etc., meeting the Company's orientation on
expanding and diversifying other types of commercial real estate investment and
development such as hotels, offices, logistics, etc., and mixed-use housing combining
commercial services.

In charge of investment and network development.

Manage and trade in residential real estate, mixed-use residential areas combining
commercial services.

Project Engineering Department:

In charge of technical management of construction projects.
Manage the design and construction of projects.

In charge of project management, plan management, budget, contractor selection, and
contract packages for projects.

Manage the repair and renovation of works.

SCID
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e Commercial Real Estate Business Department:

= Incharge of managing the business of commercial real estate (offices, hotels) and other
commercial real estate.

e Retail Real Estate Business Department:

= Responsible for managing leasing and self-operated activities at Sense City Shopping
Malls and other Shopping Mall properties.

» Responsible for the Marketing activities of the Sense City Shopping Mall chains and
other Shopping Mall properties.

e Real Estate Operation Management Department:

= Responsible for managing the operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of
equipment at commercial real estate properties (including the Sense City Shopping
Mall chain, office buildings, hotels, and other properties).

= Manages the layout of Sense City Shopping Malls and the design and construction of
booths renting space at Sense City Shopping Malls.

»  Subsidiaries, associated companies:

The main activities of subsidiaries and associated companies are trading in Shopping Malls,
services and entertainment, and supermarkets under the Co.opmart supermarket chain (see the Notes
to the Audited Separate Financial Statements for the year 2024).

5.  Development orientations

In order to build a solid brand and reputation in the market, the Company has clearly defined
its long-term development orientations as follows:

e Focus on investing in Shopping Malls, specialized Shopping Malls, Outlets, and complex
real estate investment.

e Providing services to Saigon Co.op such as general contractor services for consulting,
construction, and searching for locations to develop retail projects nationwide.

e  Strengthen cooperation with multinational corporations to develop in a globalized environment.
e Maximize value for shareholders.
Vision:

To become the leading Vietnamese company in commercial real estate
business, shopping mall management and operation
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Mission:

To be an extended arm of Saigon Co.op, focusing on finding locations, building infrastructure
for the Co.opmart supermarket system, and creating added value for shareholders
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6. Risks

»  Economic risks: The business operations of enterprises in general are affected by economic
factors as well as the Government's macroeconomic regulatory policies.

»  Legal risks: Legal risks relate to changes in the State's policies related to the operations of the
real estate, retail and retail space leasing industries, etc. in general and of the Company in
particular. Changes in the State's policies and regulations related to the operations of these
industries will affect the Company's business operations and results.

»  Financial risks: The Company's operations give rise to the following financial risks: credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Company establishes policies and controls to minimize
financial risks, as well as monitor the implementation of established policies and controls.

> Other risks:

e In addition to the risks mentioned above, the Company may also be subject to operational
risks arising from incidents occurring within the Company during its operations, such as
errors in the application of professional procedures, information technology systems
experiencing incidents, the impact of humans, etc. To prevent these types of risks, the
Company has implemented daily risk management measures from departments,
individuals, standardized professional procedures and management procedures, etc.

e Some unusual, force majeure risks such as: natural disasters, enemy attacks, fires,
epidemics, etc. when they occur, have a very large and serious impact on people, property
and the Company's general operating situation.
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I1. Operations in the Year

1. Situation of production and business operations

Vietnam's socio-economic situation in 2024 took place in the context of the world situation
continuing to be complex and unpredictable with many risk factors and uncertainties. Military
conflicts continued to escalate, strategic competition between major countries took place more and
more fiercely, many countries strengthened trade protection policies, public debt and budget deficits
increased, the decline of some major economies, and global supply chains were partially disrupted,
affecting world peace, stability and economic growth; natural disasters and extreme weather seriously
affected the lives of residents and socio-economic development in many countries.

Despite numerous difficulties and challenges, with the proactive and flexible direction and
management, as well as the timely, drastic, and close supervision of the Government, our country's socio-
economic situation continued a clear recovery trend (GDP increased by 7,09% compared to 2023), the
macroeconomy was stable, inflation was under control (the average consumer price index (CPI) increased
by 3,63% compared to 2023), major balances were ensured, many important results in various fields
achieved set goals, and it continued to be a bright spot in economic growth in the region and the world.

In that macroeconomic context, the Company had appropriate operating plans, adhered closely
to the business plan, focused on promoting business operations, ensured the stable continuation of
business operations, while also prepared and managed capital resources well for ongoing projects.

»  Regarding investment and operation of Shopping Malls: The Company focused on introducing
many important policies, maintaining stable operations, promoting leasing activities, increasing
occupancy rates; stimulating demand, exploiting purchasing power, and attracting customers to
visit, shop, and enjoy entertainment; preparing and organizing activity programs and event
series for customers shopping at the Sense City, Sense Market Cai Be, SC Vivo City Shopping
Mall systems, and Co.opmart and Co.opXtra supermarkets.

»  Regarding project management consulting activities:

e Saigon Co.op Apartment housing project: The Company continued to manage the purchase
and sale of commercial service apartments, manage warranty work, and monitor
procedures for applying for pink books for apartments.

e Can Tho Hotel Project (Charmant Suites): The Company officially opened and put it into
operation at the end of 06/2024.

e  Co.opmart supermarket project: The Company completed legal procedures, project management,
and handed over the Co.opmart Pham The Hien supermarket for operation in 09/2024.

»  Regarding real estate development investment activities:

e An Phu Project: The Company continued to monitor procedures for applying for land
allocation and for adjusting the investment policy decision.

e 102 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Project: The Company completed the procedure to apply for
appraisal of the fire protection design, was granted a construction permit, and organized
construction work in 01/2024.

e 253 Dien Bien Phu Project: The Company continued to lease to business partners and
continued to study plans to rebuild the building after the lease contract expires.

e Cam Pha Shopping Mall Project: The Company continued to manage design work, apply
for appraisal of basic design, fire protection, update investment efficiency, and procedures
for applying for construction permits.

¢ Vinh Shopping Mall Project: The Company continued to work with partners on investment
cooperation plans.

e Vinh Long Shopping Mall Project: The Company is carrying out the design to apply for a
construction permit.
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At the end of 2024, the Company achieved positive business results, in which the total revenue
realized in 2024 reached VND 125,6 billion, reaching 117,6% compared to the year's plan; profit
before tax realized in 2024 reached VND 57,3 billion, reaching 196,9% compared to the year's plan.

TOTAL REVENUE AND AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX

18
57
54 43
: I I I
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

m Total revenue (VND billion) Profit before tax (VND billion)

2. Organization and Human resource
2.1. List of the Board of Management

No. Full name Position Year of Appointing/
birth Resigning date

1 Mr. Pham Trung Kien General Director 1975

2 Mr. Pham Hoang An Deputy General 1974
Director

3 Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Deputy General 1971 Appointed on
Director 15/05/2024

4 Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Deputy General 1979 Resigned on
Director 01/05/2024

5  Mr. Pham Xuan Phong Chief Financial Officer, 1987

cum Chief Accountant

2.1.1. General Director
e Full name: PHAM TRUNG KIEN
e Gender: Male
e Nationality: Vietnamese
e Qualification: Master's Degree in Construction Investment Project Management
e  Work experience:

=  From 09/1999 to 11/2000 Architect at the Ho Chi Minh City Construction
Planning Institute
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From 12/2000 to 05/2006

From 06/2006 to 07/2007

From 07/2007 to 04/2010

From 04/2010 to 12/2015

From 01/2016 to 12/2019

From 01/2020 to present

Specialist, Deputy Head of Project Engineering Department
of the Union of Trading Cooperatives of Ho Chi Minh City
(Saigon Co.op)

Studying for a Master's degree in Construction Investment
Project Management in Australia (Program 300 PhD,
Master's)

Director of Project Development Department of SaiGon
Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company
(SCID), Member of the Board of Directors of the Union
of Trading Cooperatives of Ho Chi Minh City (Saigon Co.op)

Standing Deputy General Director of SaiGon Co.op
Investment Development Joint Stock Company (SCID),
Member of the Board of Directors of the Union of
Trading Cooperatives of Ho Chi Minh City (Saigon Co.op)

Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy General
Director of the Union of Trading Cooperatives of Ho
Chi Minh City (Saigon Co.op); Member of the Board of
Directors, General Director of SaiGon Co.op Investment
Development Joint Stock Company (SCID); Chairman
of the Board of Members of Toan Tam Trading and
Service Company

Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy General Director
of the Union of Trading Cooperatives of Ho Chi Minh City
(Saigon Co.op); Member of the Board of Directors,
General Director of SaiGon Co.op Investment Development
Joint Stock Company (SCID); Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Da Nang Distribution System Investment
and Development Joint Stock Company; Chairman of
the Board of Members of Saigon - Xuan Oai Trading
Service Co., Ltd.; Chairman of Saigon - Pleiku Trading
Service Co., Ltd.; Member of the Board of Directors of
Vietsin Commercial Complex Development Joint Stock
Company (VCCD); Member of the Board of Members
of Saigon Can Tho Trading Co., Ltd.; Member of the
Board of Members of Saigon - Chau Doc Co., Ltd;
Chairman of Co.opmart Vinh Phuc Co., Ltd.;
Chairman of Saigon - Van Dong Co., Ltd.

Number of shares owned and represented (31/12/2024): None

Number of shares owned by related persons (31/12/2024): None

Conflicts of interest with the Company: None

2.1.2.Deputy General Director:

Full name: PHAM HOANG AN

Gender: Male
Nationality: Vietnamese

Qualification: Master of Business Administration
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Work experience:

From 1998 to 07/2006

From 08/2006 to 09/2007

From 10/2007 to 08/2008
From 09/2008 to 03/2009

From 04/2009 to 02/2010

From 03/2010 to 09/2012

From 10/2012 to 04/2013

From 05/2013 to 05/2014
From 06/2014 to 12/2014
From 01/2015 to 03/2016

From 03/2016 to 12/2020

From 15/12/2020 to present

Accountant, Head of Planning - Marketing Department
of General Agent under the Union of Trading
Cooperatives of Ho Chi Minh City (Saigon Co.op)

Deputy Head of Marketing and Sales Department of Saigon
Post and Telecommunications Joint Stock Company

Project to establish ITA Fund Management Company

Head of Sales and Distribution Department of
Prudential Investment Fund Management Company

Director of Gold Trading Center of Sacombank Jewelry
Company, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock
Bank (Sacombank)

Director of Brokerage Division of Saigon Thuong Tin
Bank Securities Joint Stock Company, Saigon Thuong
Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Sacombank)

In charge of operating Y Nhan Trading and Service
Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer of VinatexMart Company
In charge of executive Y Nhan Trading and Service Co., Ltd

Deputy General Director of Quang Trung Software
City Trading Service Joint Stock Company

Director of Real Estate Development Investment
Department of SaiGon Co.op Investment Development
Joint Stock Company (SCID)

Deputy General Director of SaiGon Co.op Investment
Development Joint Stock Company (SCID); Chairman
of Saigon Can Tho Hotel Company Limited; Member
of the Board of Directors of Vietsin Commercial
Complex Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD)

Number of shares owned and represented (31/12/2024): None

Number of shares owned by related persons (31/12/2024): None

Conflict of interest with the Company: None

2.1.3.Deputy General Director:

Full name: PHAN THANH DUY

Gender: Male
Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Master of International Business

Work experience:

From 04/1995 to 10/1998

From 11/1998 to 07/2002

Staff of Import-Export Department of Ho Chi Minh
City Union of Trading Cooperatives (Saigon Co.op)

Team leader of Import-Export Department of Ho Chi Minh
City Union of Trading Cooperatives (Saigon Co.op)
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=  From 08/2002 to 01/2007 Deputy Head of Import-Export Department of Ho Chi Minh
City Union of Trading Cooperatives (SaigonCo.op)

=  From 01/2007 to 05/2009 Deputy Director of Central Distribution Center Branch
of Ho Chi Minh City Union of Trading Cooperatives
(Saigon Co.op)

=  From 05/2009 to 12/2010 Deputy Director of Vietsin Commercial Complex
Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD)

=  From 01/2011 to 07/2016 Director of Vietsin  Commercial Complex
Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD)

=  From 08/2016 to present Deputy General Director of Vietsin Commercial
Complex Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD);
Chairman of Sense Cai Be Trading Service Company
Limited; Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy
General Director of SaiGon Co.op Investment
Development Joint Stock Company (SCID); Chairman
of the Member Council of Dong Bac Shopping Mall
Investment Development Co., Ltd.

Number of shares owned and represented (31/12/2024): None
Number of shares owned by related persons (31/12/2024):
Conflict of interest with the Company: None

2.1.4.Chief Financial Officer cum Chief Accountant:

Full name: PHAM XUAN PHONG
Gender: Male

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Master of Finance
Work experience:

=  From 12/2010 to 06/2011 Assistant of Research Department, KimEng Vietnam
Securities Joint Stock Company

=  From 12/2012 to 12/2013 Co-founder cum Director of Consulting Department,
ICSPro Joint Stock Company
=  From 08/2013 to 01/2016 Deputy Chief Financial Officer of Vietsin Commercial

Complex Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD)

From 02/2016 to 16/01/2022  Chief Financial Officer of Vietsin Commercial Complex
Development Joint Stock Company (VCCD)

From 17/01/2022 to present  Chief Financial Officer cum Chief Accountant of SaiGon
Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company
(SCID); Member of the Board of Directors of Thu Duc
Import-Export Trading Joint StockCompany

Number of shares owned and represented (31/12/2024): None
Number of shares owned by related persons (31/12/2024): None

Conflict of interest with the Company: None
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2.2. Policy for employees

2.2.1.Situation and number of employees in the Company

The total number of employees as of 31/12/2024 is 79 people with the following structure:

Classification (?)l;?:;g Ratio (%)
1. By gender 79 100
- Male 39 49.4
- Female 40 50.6
2. By qualification 79 100
- Postgraduate 17 21.5
- University, college 57 72.2
- High school 05 6.3
3. By labor contract 79 100
- Indefinite term 45 57.0
- Fixed term 34 43.0

2.2.2.Policies on salary, bonus, allowance, evaluation, working regime, training, benefits

>

>

Salary, bonus, and allowance policy:

The Company pays salaries and bonuses to employees according to the Company's annual
salary and bonus regulations, linked to KPlIs, capacity, and business performance of the
Company. Bonuses include: 13th-month salary bonus, other bonuses (if any).

Depending on the position and nature of the job, employees are entitled to support and
allowances according to the Company's regulations such as: travel expenses, meal
allowance, uniforms, Saigon Co.op bonding allowance, etc. and other support and
allowances according to the Company's regulations.

The Company purchases all types of insurance as prescribed for employees.

Evaluation, promotion, and development policy:

All employees must participate in evaluating their job performance during the year as
regulated with the purpose of: correctly assessing the quality of work and compliance with
the processes and regulations of employees; measuring the actual strength of employees;
creating motivation for the working process of employees based on realistic, fair and
transparent assessment; being the basis for considering annual bonuses as prescribed by the
Company, evaluating labor productivity, appointment, termination of labor contracts, etc.

Equal career advancement opportunities for all subjects are established by the human
resource utilization plan. Those employees who are able to work well, are adaptable, and
fully possess the qualities and standards appropriate to the Company's actual operating
needs all have the opportunity to advance according to the Company's management level.
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>

Working regime:

Working hours: The Company implements 44-hour/week working regime.

Leave, holidays, Tet: Employees are entitled to leave, holidays and Tet in accordance with
State regulations.

Sick leave, maternity leave: Employees on sick leave and maternity leave will receive sick
leave benefits paid by Social Insurance in accordance with the law.

Working conditions: The Company always creates the best conditions for employees to work,
fully equipping the necessary equipment for employees to work most effectively. In addition,
the principle of labor safety is always strictly adhered to.

Training policy:

The Company always pays attention to training and coaching for employees. Depending
on the position of the employee and the planned employee, the Company will send
employees to train in industries suitable to the Company's orientation.

The Company links with a number of schools and centers outside to organize classes for
employees to improve professional qualifications, supplement soft skills, etc. to better meet
the requirements of the job.

Welfare policy:

Providing allowances for unexpected difficulties; birthdays, weddings, funerals (parents).
Paying for vacation.

Giving gifts to children on 1/6. Providing incentive bonuses for employees' children who
study well.

Mid-Autumn Festival gifts for officers and employees.

Gifts for female officers and employees on International Women's Day (8/3) and
Vietnamese Women's Day (20/10); “Two Good” women, typical “Two Good” women.

Expenses for visiting sick officers and employees, natural disasters, charity, etc.
Support expenses for union activities (Youth Union, etc.), social welfare.

Support for female officers and employees for sanitation fees; subsidies for raising young
children, postpartum allowances.

Gifts for officers and employees who were former soldiers, wounded soldiers or children of
martyrs on War Invalids and Martyrs Day (27/7), Vietnam People's Army Day (22/12).

Officers and employees receive annual health check-ups (once a year). Officers and employees
doing heavy, hazardous, and dangerous work receive periodic health check-ups every 6
months; female officers and employees receive gynecological examinations every 6 months;
male officers and employees over 40 years old receive andrological examinations once a year.

The Company purchases annual accident insurance for officers and employees, depending
on job titles. In the event of work accidents and other risks, officers and employees are
entitled to benefits paid by the insurance company.

During maternity leave, sick leave, and sick child care, officers and employees are entitled
to sick leave benefits as prescribed by the Law on Social Insurance (paid by Social
Insurance).

Investment activities, project implementation

See the explanatory notes to the Audited Separate Financial Statements for the year 2024.
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4. Financial situation
4.1. Financial situation
Unit: VND
No. Index Year 2023 Year 2024 . -
increase/decrease
1 Total asset 2.216.025.691.746 2.271.008.878.061 2,5%
2 Net revenue 36.862.665.605 34.506.192.940 -6,4%
3 Net operating profit 99.630.171.674 57.985.617.021 -41,8%
4 Other profit (81.768.912.862) (655.139.814) 99,2%
5 Profit before tax 17.861.258.812 57.330.477.207 221,0%
6 Profit after tax 17.775.784.052 56.772.035.177 219,4%
7 Dividend payout ratio - - -
Source: Audited Separate Financial Statements for 2023 and 2024
4.2. Major financial indicators
Indicators omOf  Year2023  Year 2024
1. Solvency Ratio
+ Current ratio times 18,82 19,07
+ Quick ratio times 18,52 18,79
2. Capital structure Ratio
+ Debt/Total assets ratio times 0,06 0,06
+ Debt/Owner's Equity ratio times 0,06 0,06
3. Operation capability Ratio
+ Total asset turnover times 0,02 0,02
4. Profitability
+ Profit after tax/Net revenue ratio times 0,48 1,65
+ Profit after tax/Total capital ratio times 0,01 0,03
+ Profit after tax/Total assets ratio times 0,01 0,02
+ Profit from business activities/Net revenue times 2,70 1,68

ratio

Source: Audited Separate Financial Statements for 2023 and 2024
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Shareholders structure, changes in owner's equity

Shares

Securities name: Shares of SaiGon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company.
Securities code: SID.

Type of shares: Common shares.

Par value: VND 10.000/share.

Total number of shares: 100.000.000 shares.

Number of shares outstanding: 100.000.000 shares.

Number of freely transferable shares: 100.000.000 shares.

Number of shares restricted from transfer under the provisions of law, the Company's charter
or commitments of the owner: 0 shares.

Shareholders structure
The Company's shareholders structure as of 31/12/2024 is as follows:

Domestic shareholders Foreign shareholders Total

Object Quantity Quantity Ratio Quantity Quantity Ratio Quantity Quantity Ratio
shareholders shares (%) shareholders shares (%) shareholders shares (%)

1. State shareholders - - - - - R

2. Major shareholders 1 96.092.796 96,09 - - - 1 96.092.796 96,09
(owning from 5% of share
capital)

3. Minor shareholders 959 3.804.364 3,80 10 102.840 0,10 969 3.907.204 3,91

(owning less than 5% of
share capital)

4. Internal shareholders - - - - - - - - R

- The Board of Directors (*) - - - - - - - - -

- The Board of Management - - - - - - - - -

)

- The Board of Supervisors - - - - - - - - -

- Chief Accountant - - - - - - - - -

5. Shareholders within the - - - - - - 1 100 0,0001
Company
- Staff (***) 1 100 0,0001 - - - 1 100 0,0001

- Treasury shares - - - - - -

6. Shareholders outside the 959 99.897.060 99,90 10 102.840 0,10 969 99.999.900 99,9999
Company

- Individual 957 3.784.264 3,78 10 102.840 0,10 967 3.887.104 3,8871

- Organization 2 96.112.796 96,11 - - - 2 96.112.796 96,1128

Source: List of shareholders of the Company as of 31/12/2024
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Note:
(*): Excluding shareholders who are members of the Board of Management.
(**): Excluding shareholders who are members of the Board of Directors.

(***): Excluding shareholders who are members of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, the Board of Management and Chief Accountant.

5.3. Change in the owner's equity
None.
5.4. Transaction of treasury shares
None.
5.5. Other securities
None.
Environment — Social - Governance (ESG) Report of the Company
6.1. Management of raw material sources

The Company is an enterprise operating in the field of investment and commercial real estate
business such as: Shopping Malls, offices, hotels, etc.; providing network development consulting services,
project management, repair, maintenance, warranty of basic construction parts of Co.opmart supermarket
projects for Saigon Co.op. To implement business activities, the Company operates in the form of hiring
construction contractors, not directly organizing construction but only acting as the investor, general
contractor and assigning it to the contractors. Therefore, the Company does not directly manage the source
of raw materials used in investing in commercial real estate projects or providing consulting services.

6.2. Electricity and water consumption

The Company always prioritizes the economical and rational use of electricity and water
through regulations. The Company's conservation solutions focus on raising awareness and the sense
of responsibility among staff in using electricity and water; using water and electricity-saving
equipment, regularly checking and immediately taking remedial measures for incidents, specifically:

e Turn off all equipment: computers, air conditioners, lights in the workplace when not in
use, turn off lights at locations where staff have left to work, when leaving, leave only the
really necessary equipment on.

e Use moderate air conditioning temperatures, encourage staff to complete their work during
working hours, and perform periodic maintenance on air conditioners in the Company to
improve operating efficiency.

e Set the computer screen to turn off after 15 minutes of inactivity.
e Check and turn off water taps and sanitary equipment when not in use.
e  Regularly check the operating status of the sanitary water system and immediately repair any leaks.
e Maintain general hygiene in the office to save on cleaning costs.
6.3. Compliance with the law on environmental protection
e Always adhere to and fully comply with the provisions of law on environmental protection.

e Use energy and natural resources consciously, increase the use of recycled products, and
use green equipment.

e Apply advanced technology to minimize energy consumption.

e Regularly conduct propaganda to raise awareness of environmental protection and energy
saving among staff in the Company.
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6.4.

6.5.
>

Policies related to employees
See Part 11, section 2.2.
Report on responsibility for local community

The Company has organized the following activities: supporting 100 gifts of essential goods to
people in difficult circumstances, people with disabilities, lonely elderly people, and people with
meritorious services to the revolution in Thoi Lai District, Can Tho City; donating 200 gifts of
essential goods to people in Thoi Binh District and Tran Van Thoi District, Ca Mau Province;
sponsoring VND 50 million for students in difficult circumstances in Vung Liem District;
supporting VND 150 million in funding for scholarship funds in Can Tho City; participating in
the program “Walk for victims of Agent Orange/dioxin” with a contribution of VND 100
million; supporting more than VND 100 million to care for the Elderly Association, the Women's
Union, and the Traditional Medicine Association in Ho Chi Minh City; the leadership and all
staff of the Company contributed VND 129 million to support people in areas affected by storm
No. 3 (Yagi) to overcome difficulties after the natural disaster; participating in contributing to
and supporting union members who do not have the conditions to repair or build houses under
the Plan <100 Saigon Co.op Trade Union Roofs - Affectionate Colleagues™ launched by the
Saigon Co.op Trade Union phase 1 with the amount of VND 25,8 million.

In addition, on holidays and traditional anniversaries, the Company organized propaganda
activities to celebrate the 79th anniversary of the August Revolution (19/08/1945 - 19/08/2024)
and National Day (02/09/1945 - 02/09/202), the 134th anniversary of President Ho Chi Minh's
birth, Southern Liberation Day 30/04/2024 and International Labor Day 01/05/2024,
Vietnamese Women's Day 20/10/2024, the founding anniversary of the Vietnam People's Army
22/12/2024; offering incense and flowers to commemorate heroic martyrs on the occasion of
War Invalids and Martyrs Day 27/07/2024 at Ho Chi Minh City's Martyrs Cemetery;
participating in the Green Sunday program in the border area in Dong Thap Province, etc.

Additionally, to foster solidarity and camaraderie among all staff members, the Company has
coordinated numerous activities, such as organizing Team Building events in Can Tho City;
participating in sports competitions like soccer, tug-of-war, and badminton at the Saigon Co.op
Traditional Sports Festival 2024; joining the “35 Years of Trust and Connection” race
celebrating Saigon Co.op's 35th anniversary; providing care and rewards to the children of staff
members who have achieved excellent or advanced academic performance on International
Children's Day, 01/06/2024; offering birthday gifts, and organizing Mid-Autumn Festival and
Lunar New Year care packages for Company staff; and implementing policies to care for and
support staff, Party members, and laborers facing difficult circumstances.
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I11. Reports and assessments of the Board of Management
. Assessments of the economic situation in 2024

The global economy in 2024 recorded more positive recovery signals compared to 2023
(projected to reach 3,2% according to the IMF), due to the recovery of international trade and
controlled inflation, although many risks still lurk from political instability and increased geopolitical
conflicts. Amid that complex and volatile political-economic context, Vietnam's economy continues
to be a bright spot in the region with GDP growth of 7,09%, driven by a strong recovery from
industrial production and construction, strong export growth, and stable FDI inflows with record-high
disbursement levels. Inflation continued to be effectively controlled, with the average CPI for the
year reaching 3,63%, significantly lower than the target of 4%-4,5% set at the beginning of the year.

However, in addition to the positive results, Vietnam's economy still faces some challenges
such as the increase in the ratio of bad bank debts by 3,4% compared to 2023, the pressure of
competition from USD/VND exchange rate fluctuations is still high, real estate prices tend to
increase, and especially domestic consumption demand is recovering more slowly than expected. The
total retail sales of goods and consumer service revenue in 2024 increased by 9,0% compared to the
same period last year, much lower than the increase in 2022 and 2023, which were 20% and 9,4%
respectively, and have not yet returned to the pre-pandemic growth trajectory. Excluding price
factors, the actual increase was only about 5,9%, indicating that people's purchasing power is still
weak due to slow income recovery, increased savings sentiment, and consumer confidence has not
been firmly strengthened, affecting people's purchasing power and consumption. This has
significantly impacted retail business activities, especially at Shopping Malls such as Sense City,
Sense Market, and SC Vivo City, as customer traffic and average spending per shopping trip have
not met expectations.

Il. Results achieved in 2024

»  Successfully completed the business plan according to Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ/PHDBCD
dated 21/05/2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

»  Results of plan implementation in 2024
e Total revenue: VND 125,6 billion.
Of which, Revenue from sales and service provision: VND 34,5 billion.
e Profit before tax: VND 57,3 billion.

»  Focus on reviewing and completing legal procedures to accelerate the progress of existing
projects, carefully calculate investment options for large projects; develop new projects. In
2024, the new business model of Can Tho Hotel was launched.

»  Operational optimization is always prioritized, profits are maximized, and high efficiency in
the use of investment costs is ensured.

»  Manage and operate the Sense City, Sense Market, and SC Vivo City Shopping Mall chains to
ensure business performance growth.

»  Successfully organized a series of events to celebrate the 10th anniversary of the Sense City chain.
This is a series of year-round events in 2024 to thank customers and mark a new stage of development
for the 04 Sense City Shopping Malls: Can Tho, Ca Mau, Ben Tre, and Pham Van Dong.

»  Digital transformation is still a focus; in 2024, ERP software was applied to manage Sense
Market's operations and is being implemented for the office block and the remaining units.

»  Business of Sense City Shopping Mall, SC Vivo City:

e Promote leasing activities and increase the occupancy rate in 2025 by restructuring the
leasable area to be more suitable for the market and exploiting leasing to industry groups that
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are likely to attract, grow well, and have the potential to expand their business network with
guaranteed financial resources, while also actively increasing short-term leasing activities.

Develop preferential leasing policies in packages to persuade leasing partners to cooperate
simultaneously in the chain to increase floor coverage at the Shopping Mall and increase
brand recognition through strategic cooperation with major partners.

Organize and implement events and marketing activities with high customer interaction for
major holidays such as the 17th anniversary of SCID's establishment, the 50th anniversary
of the South's liberation, Mid-Autumn Festival, Halloween, Tet, etc., to stimulate demand,
exploit purchasing power, and attract customers to visit, shop, and have fun after reopening.

Continue working with a number of functional agencies in the provinces on land legal
procedures to prepare for investment in Shopping Mall projects, and study new business
models at a number of potential projects.

New Shopping Mall model in the district-level Sense Market Cai Be: After one year of operation,
it has achieved positive initial operational and financial targets, with the average occupancy
rate in 2024 reaching 85,4% and deploying the Company's first self-operated F&B model.

Leasing real estate business: Continue leasing the 253 Dien Bien Phu Building - District 3 to business
partners, while continuing to study the investment plan to rebuild the building after the lease expires.

Real estate project development investment:

An Phu Project: continue to carry out the work of requesting adjustments to the investment
policy decision and requesting land allocation, but there are still some problems with
planning, public land and interspersed land, and coordinate with Thu Thiem Real Estate
JSC in fulfilling the obligation to contribute to the main technical infrastructure, and carry
out the work related to the cooperation contract with partners.

102 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Project: currently under construction of the rough construction,
is expected to complete construction and open in the 4th quarter of 2025.

Sense Plaza Cam Pha Shopping Mall Project: The joint venture company has completed
the adjustment of the detailed plan 1/500, continues to carry out the design work and
procedures for applying for a construction permit. In parallel, negotiate with partners on a
plan to buy back charter capital in the joint venture and is expected to start construction in
the second half of 2025.

Sense Plaza Vinh Shopping Mall Project: The Company's Board of Directors approved the
investment policy under the Sense Plaza model and is negotiating with partners on an
optimal investment cooperation plan.

Sense Festi VVinh Long Shopping Mall Project: The Company's Board of Directors has approved
the investment policy according to the Sense Festi model and is implementing the design for
construction permit application. The groundbreaking is expected in the 03rd quarter of 2025.

Project management consulting service:

Saigon Co.op Apartment Housing Project: completed the handover of residential
apartments and commercial service units, submitted the application at the City Land
Registration Office for the issuance of pink books for residential apartments, and continued
to monitor the implementation of warranty work.

Co.opmart Pham The Hien Supermarket Project: managed the implementation of construction
investment, completed and handed over to Saigon Co.op for opening in 09/2024.

Can Tho Hotel Project: completed construction and opened in 06/2024. Currently, the Company
Is in charge of management and operation with positive initial results. Continue to review and
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>

improve operations and standardize processes as well as consolidate the organizational
structure to lay the foundation for the Company to develop into a chain of hotels in the future.

Other tasks:

e  Prepare reports and disclose information on the management situation of public companies
in accordance with regulations.

Orientation of operations in 2025
Forecast of the economic market situation in 2025

Continuing the growth momentum of 2024 and towards celebrating the 50th anniversary of the
liberation of the South and national reunification; The National Assembly has set a growth
target of 8% or more in 2025. To achieve that growth expectation, many resolutions have been
issued quickly and drastically by the Government, setting out a number of key orientations for
focused development: development based on new technologies (digital assets, crypto assets),
the development of artificial intelligence is being implemented in practice; public investment
continues to be used to promote growth with many important transport infrastructures expected
to be completed in 2025; in addition, fiscal policy and monetary policy will continue to
coordinate reasonably to regulate the economy, and bank credit is still expected to be an
important channel for capital to achieve high growth expectations.

The real estate market is forecast to have many signs of recovery and recovery in 2025, which
not only reflects the improvement in the economy but also has a positive impact on consumer
sentiment, contributing to promoting consumer confidence, encouraging spending and
investment in other fields, including retail. Therefore, the size of Vietnam's retail market in
2025 may reach USD 350 billion, contributing 59% of the total state budget (forecast by the
Ministry of Industry and Trade). However, potential risks from US protectionist policies and
strong competition from international units in the field of commercial real estate investment in
general and Shopping Malls in particular are major challenges in 2025.

Major tasks:

Continue to implement operational optimization, maximize profits, ensure high efficiency in
the use of investment costs, and optimize operating costs.

Promote investment in the development and business of commercial real estate with key
projects to be started (including the Sense Plaza Cam Pha Shopping Mall project, Sense Festi
Vinh Long) and opened (102 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Office for lease) in 2025, and continue to
carry out the legal procedures of the An Phu project.

Continue to provide project management services for Saigon Co.op's projects according to plan,
which is expected to complete the construction and handover of the Co.opmart Thong Nhat and
Nguyen Trai supermarket projects to Saigon Co.op in 2025.

Expand the ecosystem of Saigon Co.op/SCID through the implementation of new business
models and strongly promote linkages within the system, in order to create synergistic value,
diversify revenue sources, and promote the sustainable development of the Company.

Focus on preparing financial resources for projects under the new model that will commence
construction in the near future.

Complete the digital transformation for the Company's office block and project management,
and continue implementation for directly affiliated subsidiaries.

Research and implement the organizational restructuring and streamlining of the apparatus
towards building a flexible, efficient, and robust organizational system, in line with the
Company's development strategy in the coming time.
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IV. Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation
I.  Operational situation in 2024
»  General activities:

e In 2024, the Board of Directors operated in compliance with the Charter, Operating
Regulations of the Board of Directors, current legal regulations, and carried out activities
within the authority of the Board of Directors to implement the resolutions of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024 and the decisions of the Board of Directors.

e The Board of Directors held 26 regular and periodic meetings, making Strategic-oriented
decisions, and providing timely guidance for business operations. The Board of Directors
issued 16 decisions within its authority to approve policies related to: governance and
management, and approval of investment projects.

e The Board of Directors has performed well in decentralizing/delegating powers to
promptly meet the business operation requirements of the Company, creating conditions
and supporting the Board of Management in implementing projects according to plan. The
Board of Directors has made efforts to provide orientations and guidance to the Board of
Management in finding solutions, preparing investment plans and investment capital for
large commercial real estate projects in order to prepare for implementation in the near
future, contributing to bringing efficiency to the Company.

e The Board of Directors has directed the correct implementation according to regulations
on the preparation and publication of information related to the Company's governance
situation, financial statements, annual reports, and information on business activities as
prescribed. The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders was successfully organized.

»  Supervisory activities:

The Board of Directors has conducted supervisory activities for the Board of Management and
members of the Executive Board to ensure the overall operation of the Company in accordance with
the orientation, direction, compliance with the law, and improvement of business efficiency:

e Monitoring the implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
decisions of the Board of Directors that have been issued.

e Monitoring the preparation, use, and management of capital sources for projects that have
been and are being implemented according to plan.

e Monitoring the administration and management of the Board of Management to improve
business efficiency and complete the plan targets approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

e Directing and supervising the Company's information disclosure transparently and
promptly in accordance with regulations.

»  Implementation of the 2024 business plan:

In Vietnam, the Government has also implemented many important policies to promote
economic growth, specifically: promoting public investment and supporting businesses; introducing
policies to promote exports, taking advantage of FTAs, attracting FDI into high technology and
renewable energy; promoting renewable energy, supporting digital transformation and Al, and
improving the investment environment for businesses. These decisions have supported Vietnam's
GDP to grow by 7,09% in 2024, higher than the 5,05% of 2023 and exceeding the target of 6,5%-7%
of the National Assembly, among the highest in Southeast Asia. In addition, monetary policy was
also managed flexibly, thereby effectively controlling inflation, with core inflation in 2024 increasing
by 2,71% compared to 2023, lower than the average CPI increase in 2024 (3,63%), below the ceiling
of 4%-4,5% set by the National Assembly. Besides that, there are still many challenges for the
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Vietnamese economy when the bad debt ratio of banks increases slightly, the pressure of competition
from USD/VND exchange rate fluctuations is still high, GDP is heavily dependent on exports, and
caution is still needed with risks from the world situation.

In that context, the Company's Board of Directors focused on directing the cautious
implementation of business activities, closely following the developments of macroeconomic
conditions to maximize opportunities to deploy business activities, as a result, the Company achieved
positive business results.

»  Implementation of corporate governance regulations:

The Company's regulations, rules, and activities all comply with corporate governance
regulations and the provisions of law. In 2024, all information related to the Company's governance
situation was disclosed on time in accordance with the law, in accordance with regulations, and no
violations occurred.

> Board of Directors' Remuneration:

The total amount of remuneration paid to the members of the Board of Directors in 2024 was
VND 240.000.000, which was within the approved spending level approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

»  Transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries, members of the Board of Directors, and
related parties:

None occurred.
Il.  Orientation of operations in 2025

»  Continue to improve management capacity, directing the General Management to perform
business tasks, ensuring the right direction and goals are set out.

»  Accelerate and expedite the investment and development of key commercial real estate projects
in 2025 under the new model, including new Shopping Mall models such as Sense Plaza and
Sense Festi, as well as the office leasing business model. At the same time, actively prepare
project resources as well as financial resources in parallel to create a premise for development
in the following years.

»  Continue to improve the efficiency of business operations at Sense City, Sense Market, and
Charmant Suites Can Tho Hotel. Coordinate the good management and operation of SC Vivo
City Shopping Mall.

»  Seek partners with capacity, experience, and suitability to the Company's development
orientation for cooperation, joint venture, and association in investment and development of
new projects, increasing resources for the Company.

» Implement the organizational restructuring project, streamlining the apparatus to ensure a lean,
strong, effective, and efficient organizational structure that meets the development orientation
requirements of the Company in the future.

»  Implement digital transformation according to the roadmap to improve work productivity
efficiency, increase accuracy and optimize business operations, and enhance connectivity in
work between departments, between the Company's office and its units.
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V.  Corporate governance

1. Board of Directors

1.1. Members and structure of the Board of Directors

No. Full name Position Year of Quantity Rate
birth shares (%)
1 Mr. Vu Anh Khoa (*) Chairman 1983 - -
2 Mr. Pham Trung Kien Member 1975 - -
3 Mr. Le Truong Son (*) Member 1972 - -
4 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang (*) Member 1979 - -
5  Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Member 1971 - -
Appointed on 21/05/2024
6 Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Member 1979 - -

Resigned on 21/05/2024

Note: The number of shares owned is based on the Company's list of shareholders as of 31/12/2024.

Including:
(*): Non-executive member.

1.2. The subcommittees of the Board of Directors

None.

1.3. Activities of the Board of Directors

»  Meetings of the Board of Directors in 2024: During the year, the Board of Directors held 26
meetings, specifically as follows:

No. Full name Position Number of Rate Reason
meetings (%) not attended
attended

1 Mr. Vu Anh Khoa Chairman 26/26 100 -
2 Mr. Pham Trung Kien Member 26/26 100 -
3 Mr. Le Truong Son Member 26/26 100 -
4 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang Member 26/26 100 -
5  Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Member 13/13 100 -
6  Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Member 10/13 77 (absent with

permission)

»  Activities of the Board of Directors during the year:

e Supervise the implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
resolutions, decisions of the Board of Directors.
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Review the implementation of investment projects; supervise the preparation, use, and
management of investment capital for projects that have been and are being implemented
according to plan.

Supervise the operating activities of the members of the Board of Management. Evaluate
and make recommendations to help the Board of Management implement and ensure the
Company's business operations according to the plan approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Dismissal, re-appointment of Deputy General Director of the Company; nomination of
personnel to participate in affiliated companies.

Decision on adjusting and increasing salaries for the Company's management personnel.

Supervise the implementation of transparent and timely information disclosure by the
Company in accordance with regulations.

Decisions of the Board of Directors:

During the year, the Board of Directors issued 16 decisions related to: governance and
management. The decisions issued by the Board of Directors were unanimously agreed upon by all
members and in accordance with the Charter and resolutions of the Company's General Meeting of
Shareholders.

No. Number of Date Content
resolutions,
decisions

1 01/2024/Qb-HPQT 21/03/2024 Decision on terminating the labor contract with Mr.
Doan Tran Thai Duy

2 02/2024/Qb-HPQT 05/04/2024 Decision on extending the time to hold the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders

3 03/2024/Qb-HbQT 12/04/2024 Decision on recruiting and appointing the General
Director of Saigon Can Tho Hotel One Member Limited
Company

4 04/2024/Qb-HPQT 15/05/2024 Decision on appointing the Deputy General Director of
SaiGon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock
Company

5 05/2024/Qb-HBbQT 15/05/2024 Decision on assigning concurrent position to Mr. Phan
Thanh Duy

6 06/2024/Qb-HBQT 31/05/2024 Decision on nominating personnel to participate in the
Board of Supervisors of Vietsin Commercial Complex
Development Joint Stock Company

7 07/2024/Qb-HBQT  31/05/2024 Decision on nominating personnel to participate in the
Member Council of Northeast Shopping Mall
Development Investment Co., Ltd

8 08/2024/Qb-HBQT 31/05/2024 Decision on nominating personnel to participate in the
Member Council of Saigon Co.op International
Investment Limited Company

9 09/2024/Qb-HDBQT 10/06/2024 Decision on the nomination of personnel to participate
in the Board of Directors of Vietsin Commercial
Complex Development Joint Stock Company
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10 10/2024/Qb-HPQT 17/06/2024 Decision on adjusting the recruitment and appointment
time of General Director of Saigon Can Tho Hotel

11  11/2024/Qb-HDPQT  15/07/2024 Decision on changing the charter capital of Sense Cai
Be Trading and Service Co., Ltd.

12 12/2024/Qb-HPQT 26/07/2024 Decision on recruiting and appointing Director of
Human Resources and Administration of Saigon Can
Tho Hotel Co., Ltd.

13 13/2024/Qb-HDPQT  20/08/2024 Decision on salary adjustment for Mr. Pham Hoang An

14 14/NQ-HPbQT 04/09/2024  Decision on approving the investment project of Vinh
Long Shopping Mall

15 15/NQ-HBQT 13/09/2024  Decision on approving the policy on the service charge
of Can Tho Hotel

16 16/2024/Qb-HPQT 23/10/2024 Decision on raising the salary for Mr. Pham Xuan Phong

1.4. Activities of independent, non-executive members of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors currently has no independent, non-executive members.

1.5. The list of members of the Board of Directors possessing certificates on corporate
governance. The list of members of the Board of Directors participating in corporate
governance programs in the year

During the year, there were no corporate governance training courses that members of the Board
of Directors attended that were recorded.

2.  Board of Supervisors
2.1. Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors

No. Full name Position Year of Quantity Ratio
birth shares (%)
1 Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh Head of Board 1978 - -
2  Ms. Truong Phan Hoang Thy Supervisor 1976 - -
3 Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh Supervisor 1987 - -

Note: The number of shares owned is based on the Company's shareholder list as of 31/12/2024.
2.2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors

»  Meetings of the Board of Supervisors in 2024: During the year, the Board of Supervisors held
02 meetings, specifically as follows:

No. Full name Position Number of Ratio Reason for
meetings (%) not attending
attended

1 Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh Head of the board 02/02 100 -
2  Ms. Truong Phan Hoang Thy Member 02/02 100 -
3 Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh Member 02/02 100 -
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3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

The Board of Supervisors has performed tasks such as: supervising the convening of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, inspecting, reviewing, and evaluating the implementation of
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and decisions of the Board of Directors;
attending meetings of the Board of Directors, discussing; supervising the management and
administration activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in organizing
the implementation of business and investment plans; appraising the audited separate and
consolidated financial statements for 2023, the Company's self-prepared quarterly and reviewed
semi-annual financial statements; monitoring the exercise of shareholder rights, shareholder
opinions and recommendations related to the management and administration of the Board of
Directors, the Board of Management, and other management positions; reviewing and
approving draft reports on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2023 and the proposal
to select an auditing company to provide review and audit services for the 2024 financial
statements to be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024; reviewing
and contributing opinions on the 2024 financial statement review and audit contract signed with
A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd., reports on the situation of capital utilization in 2024;
monitoring the implementation of some key investment projects.

During the year, the Board of Supervisors had meetings with conclusions on the results of the
appraisal of governance and administration as follows:

e The Board of Directors operates in accordance with the operating regulations and the
Company's Charter. The Board of Directors and the General Director closely monitor and
direct the Company's business and investment activities.

e In the course of its operations, the Company has complied with and adhered to the
provisions of law, the Charter, and the resolutions of the Company's General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management,
and the Board of Supervisors

Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management,
and the Board of Supervisors

See the Notes to the Audited Separate Financial Statements for 2024.

Share transactions by internal shareholders.

None.

Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders

See the Audited Separate Financial Statements Explanatory Report for 2024.
Assessing the implementation of regulations on corporate governance
The Company complies with the provisions of law on corporate governance.

SCID

38



ANNUAL REPORT 2024

V1. Financial statements
1.  Report of the Board of Management

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) presents this statement together with the Financial
Statements for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024.

Business highlights

Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company has been operating in accordance with
the Business Registration Certificate No. 0304921066, initially registered on 04/04/2007 and 13th
amended on 08/12/2022, granted by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment.

Head office:

Address : No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
Tel : +84 (028) 3836 0143

Fax : +84 (028) 3822 5457

Principal business activities of the Company are:

- Management consultancy (except for financial, accounting, legal consultancy);

- Construction completion;

- Advertising;

- Market research and public opinion polling;

- Trade introduction and promotion (not performing detonation effects and not using explosive
and combustible substances, chemicals for props, tools in entertainment programs, events and
films);

- Trading food and foodstuff (implementing according to the Decision No. 64/2009/Qb-UBND
dated 31/07/2009 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on approving the planning
for trading agricultural products and foodstuff in Ho Chi Minh City and the Decision No.
79/2009/Qb-UBND dated 17/10/2009 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on
amending Clause 2, Article 1 of the Decision No. 64/2009/QDb-UBND dated 31/07/2009 of the
People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City);

- Retail of audiovisual equipment in specialized stores;
- Supply and management of domestic labor resources (except for labor sub-hire);
- Legal consultancy (except for financial, accounting and legal consultancy);

- Construction consultancy; consultancy on report preparation, investment project development;
project management consultancy; design verification, project estimate; bidding consultancy;
general construction contractor; consultancy on construction investment cost management;
supervision of installation of electrical parts and electrical equipment of power lines and
transformer stations; electrical design of power lines and stations; electromechanical design of
construction works; supervision of construction and completion of civil and industrial works;
architectural design of works; interior and exterior design of works; construction planning
design; supervision of installation of air conditioning and ventilation systems, civil and
industrial works; supervision of installation of electrical parts and electrical equipment of civil
and industrial works; topographic survey of construction site; geological survey of construction
works;
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General support services;

General cleaning of houses;

Cleaning services for industrial and specialized works;

Landscape care and maintenance services;

General office administration services;

Construction of residential houses;

Construction of non-residential houses;

Construction of water supply and drainage works;

Demolition;

Preparation of construction sites;

Other specialized construction activities;

Road construction;

Drainage and wastewater treatment (not operating at the head office);
Construction of telecommunications and information works;
Wholesale of construction materials and other installation equipment;
Commercial brokerage and environmental consultancy;

Wholesale of agricultural and forestry raw materials (except for wood, bamboo, neohouzeaua)
and live animals (not operating at the head office);

Wholesale of other machinery, equipment and spare parts;

Real estate management on a fee or contract basis; real estate brokerage, real estate valuation
and real estate trading floors; house and apartment management;

Other unclassified manufacturing activities;

Other support services related to transportation;

Installation of water supply, drainage, heating and air conditioning systems;
Acting as an agent, broker, auctioneer of goods (no auction business);
Operating restaurants and providing mobile catering services;

Tour operation;

Electrical system installation;

Trading real estate; investment in construction, operating commercial centers, office buildings;
leasing warehouses and yards;

Retail of household electrical appliances, beds, wardrobes, tables, chairs and similar furniture,
lamps and luminaires, other unclassified household appliances in specialized stores;

Installation of other construction systems;

Processing and preserving fruits and vegetables;

Construction of electrical works;

Booking services and support services related to promotion and organization of tours.
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Board of Directors and Executive Board

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Company during the year and as of the date
of this statement include:

The Board of Directors

Appointing/Re-appointing/

Full name Position Resigning date

Mr. Vu Anh Khoa Chairman Appointed on 29/04/2022
Mr. Pham Trung Kien Member Re-appointed on 29/04/2022
Mr. Le Truong Son Member Re-appointed on 29/04/2022
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang Member Re-appointed on 29/04/2022
Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Member Appointed on 21/05/2024
Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Member Resigned on 21/05/2024

The Supervisory Board

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing date
Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh Head of Board Re-appointed on 29/04/2022
Mrs. Truong Phan Hoang Thy Member Appointed on 29/04/2022
Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh Member Appointed on 29/04/2022

The Board of Management

Appointing/Re-appointing/

Full name Position Resigning date

Mr. Pham Trung Kien General Director Re-appointed on 01/01/2023

Mr. Pham Hoang An Deputy General Re-appointed on 15/12/2023
Director

Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Deputy General Appointed on 15/05/2024
Director

Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Deputy General Resigned on 01/05/2024
Director

Legal representative

The Company’s legal representative during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Pham
Trung Kien - General Director (re-appointed on 01/01/2023).

Auditor

A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Company’s
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the Financial
Statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance and the
cash flows of the Company during the year. In order to prepare these Financial Statements, the Board
of Management must:

. select appropriate accounting policies and apply these policies consistently;
. make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;

. state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Company are followed or not, and
all the material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements;

. prepare the Financial Statements of the Company on the going-concern basis, except for the
cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

. design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of material
misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements.

The Board of Management hereby ensures that all the proper accounting books of the Company have
been fully recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Company at any time, and that
all the accounting books have been prepared in compliance with the applicable Accounting System.
The Board of Management is also responsible for managing the Company’s assets and consequently
has taken appropriate measures to prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Management hereby commits to the compliance with the aforementioned requirements
in preparation of the Financial Statements.

Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Management hereby approves the accompanying Financial Statements which give a
true and fair view of the financial position as of 31/12/2024 of the Company, its financial performance
and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

pehalf of the Board of Management;~,

g ’

......

Date: 31 March 2025
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Independent Audit’s Report
No.: 1.0903/25/TC-AC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: THESHAREHOLDERS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint
Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company’’), which were prepared on 31/03/2025 (from page
6 to page 39), including the Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2024, the Income Statement, the Cash Flow
Statement for the fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation
of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation
and presentation of the Financial Statements; and responsible for the internal control as the
Company’s Board of Management determines necessary to enable the preparation and presentation
of the Financial Statements to be free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
position as of 31/12/2024 of Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company, its financial
performance and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of
A&C ﬁd'f'@g{ﬂ\d Consulting Co., Ltd.

o AAQ

LI

o/ : o <
3 HACHNHIENHUJMN T

EM TOAN VA IV
AL ;C ¢

I qu Pham My Tuyen
Parfher—— Auditor

Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 2129-2023-008-1 Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 3596-2021-008-1
Authorized Signatory

-
¢

Ho Chi Minh City, 31 March 2025
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BALANCE SHEET
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
Code ASSETS Note Ending balance  Beginning balance
100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 419.523.066.260 417.452.216.544
110 1. Cash and cash equivalents V.1 82.101.119.656 96.676.499.466
111 1. Cash 22.394.654.805 11.975.650.797
112 2. Cash equivalents 59.706.464.851 84.700.848.669
120  Il. Short-term financial investments 288.266.823.126 276.013.433.383
121 1. Trading securities V.2a 13.859.293.545 13.859.293.545
122 2. Provision for devaluation of trading securities V.2a (5.011.393.545) (4.706.293.545)
123 3. Held-to-maturity investments V.2b 279.418.923.126 266.860.433.383
130  Ill. Short-term receivables 42.896.790.084 38.148.161.405
131 1. Short-term trade receivables V.3a 11.295.856.962 15.489.799.105
132 2. Short-term prepayments to suppliers V.4 7.000.848.316 268.803.997
135 3. Receivables for short-term loans V.5 16.600.000.000 16.600.000.000
136 4. Other short-term receivables V.6a 23.635.887.867 21.722.798.303
137 5. Allowance for short-term doubtful debts V.7 (15.635.803.061) (15.933.240.000)
140  IV. Inventories = -
150 V. Other current assets 6.258.333.394 66.14.122.290
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses V.8a 2.877.248.912 3.007.028.910
152 2. Deductible VAT 332.685.132 -
153 3. Taxes and other receivables from the State V.15 3.048.399.350 3.607.093.380
200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1.851.485.811.801 1.798.573.475.202
210 1. Long-term receivables 139.540.493.693 112.317.925.202
211 1. Long-term trade receivables V.3b 28.325.781.693 26.103.213.202
216 2. Other long-term receivables V.6b 111.214.712.000 86.214.712.000
220 Il. Fixed assets 5.575.303.460 2.736.418.425
221 1. Tangible fixed assets V.9 2.455.560.675 2.434.083.862
222 Historical cost 12.010.145.201 11.809.940.134
223 Accumulated depreciation (9.554.584.526) (9.375.856.272)
227 2. Intangible fixed assets V.10 3.119.742.785 302.334.563
228 Historical cost 4.554.329.792 1.276.500.000
229 Accumulated depreciation (1.434.587.007) (974.165.437)
230  IlI. Investment properties V.11 36.078.675.198 37.749.107.382
231 Historical cost 57.817.638.519 57.817.638.519
232 Accumulated depreciation (21.738.963.321) (20.068.531.137)
240  IV. Long-term assets in progress 496.540.000.649 480.718.677.007
242 1. Long-term work in process V.12 496.540.000.649 480.718.677.007
250 V. Long-term financial investments 1.172.011.814.245  1.162.237.795.552
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251 1. Investment in subsidiaries V.2c 144.600.000.000 129.600.000.000
252 2. Investment in joint ventures and associates V.2c 1.040.459.576.518  1.040.459.576.518
254 3. Provisions for devaluation of long-term financial V.2c (13.047.762.273) (7.821.780.966)
260  VI. Other non-current assets 1.739.524.556 2.813.551.634
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses V.8b 1.733.440.556 2.807.719.634
262 2. Deferred income tax assets V.13a 6.084.000 5.832.000
270 TOTAL ASSETS 2.271.008.878.061 2.216.025.691.746
BALANCE SHEET
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 31 2024 (continued)
Unit: VND
Code TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY Note Ending balance  Beginning balance
300 A. LIABILITIES 127.943.635.044 128.132.663.341
310 I. Current liabilities 21.995.947.074 22.184.975.371
311 1. Short-term trade payables V.14 4.432.270.130 1.175.549.853
313 2. Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget V.15 629.661.085 1.543.947.285
314 3. Payables to employees V.16 3.161.839.843 7.000.636.348
315 4. Short-term accrued expenses 258.730.111 241.818
318 5. Short-term unearned revenue 79.720.245 72.472.950
319 6. Other short-term payables V.17a, C 545.198.127 708.437.848
322 7. Bonus and welfare fund V.18 12.888.527.533 11.683.689.269
330 II. Non-current liabilities 105.947.687.970 105.947.687.970
337 1. Other long-term payables V.17b, c 105.947.687.970 105.947.687.970
400 B. OWNER'SEQUITY 2.143.065.243.017  2.087.893.028.405
410 I. Owner's equity 2.143.065.243.017  2.087.893.028.405
411 1. Owner's capital V.19 1.000.000.000.000  1.000.000.000.000
418 2. Investment and development fund V.19 867.538.509.941 858.650.617.915
421 3. Retained earnings V.19 275.526.733.076 229.242.410.490
440  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 2.271.008.878.061 2.216.025.691.746
3 // +Hp; ( Mlinh City, 31 March 2025
/'.- CONG TY N\ ’
I <] cOPHAN el
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m— Pham Xuan Phong \fihlﬁ;”l/rung Kien
Preparer Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer
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INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
Code ITEMS Note Current year Previous year
01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services VIl 34.506.192.940 36.862.665.605
02 2. Revenue deductions = -
10 3. Netrevenue 34.506.192.940  36.862.665.605
11 4. Cost of sales V1.2 10.049.548.644 10.848.421.988
20 5. Gross profit 24.456.644.296 26.014.243.617
21 6. Financial income VI3 90.999.889.345  142.389.301.482
22 7. Financial expenses V14 5.531.081.307 2.892.230.225
23 Of which: interest expenses = -
25 8. Selling expenses 395.432.668 696.962.194
26 9. General and administration expenses V1.5 51.544.402.645 65.184.181.006
30 10. Net operating profit 57.985.617.021 99.630.171.674
31 11. Other income V1.6 152.431.567 489.045.421
32 12. Other expenses VI.7 807.571.381 82.257.958.283
40  13. Other profit (655.139.814)  (81.768.912.862)
50 14. Total accounting profit before tax 57.330.477.207 17.861.258.812
51 15. Current income tax V.15 558.694.030 -
52 16. Deferred income tax V.13a (252.000) 85.474.760
60 17. Profit after tax 56.772.035.177 17.775.784.052

70 18. Basic earnings per share V1.8

71 19. Diluted earnings per share V1.8

~ sHp; hiMinh City, 31 March 2025
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Ta Ngoe Thao
Preparer
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Pham Xuan Phong
Chief Accountant
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Chief Executive Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
Code ITEMS Note Current year Previous year
I. Cash flow from operating activities
01 1. Profit before tax 57.330.477.207 17.861.258.812
2. Adjustments:
02 !Depreciation/(Amqrtization) of fixed assetsand V.9, 10, 11 3.253.258.787 4.926.420.284
investment properties
03 Provisions and allowances V.2a, 2¢, 7 5.233.644.368 18.825.470.225
05 Gain/(loss) from investing activities V13,6 (91.143.987.578)  (61.075.101.118)
08 3. Profit from business activities before changes (25.326.607.216)  (19.461.951.797)
in working capital
09 Increase/(decrease) of receivables (31.491.162.070)  (17.258.393.709)
11 Increase/(decrease) of payables 2.733.090.299 (2.485.545.198)
12 Increase/(decrease) of prepaid expenses 1.204.059.076 (2.413.380.451)
13 Increase/(decrease) of trading securities - (7.508.035)
16 Other cash inflows V.18 30.370.000 2.240.000
17 Other cash outflows V.18 (425.352.301) (434.213.603)
20 Net cash flow from business activities (53.275.602.212)  (42.058.752.793)
Il. Cash flow from investment activities
21 1. Purchases and construction of fixed assets and (24.992.861.448) (2.806.669.600)
other non-current assets
22 2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and V.9, V.33, - 195.800.000
other non-current assets V1.6
23 3. Cash outflow for lending, buying debt (626.569.954.098) (521.676.026.430)
instruments of other entities
24 4. Cash recovered from lending, selling debt 614.011.464.355  524.489.350.436
instruments of other entities
25 5. Investments in other entities V.2c (15.000.000.000)  (15.000.000.000)
27 6. |Interest earned, dividends and profits received 91.264.209.173  142.245.995.115
30  Net cash flow from investment activities 38.712.857.982  127.448.449.521
I11. Cash flow from financing activities
36 1. Dividends, profits paid to owners V.17a (12.635.580) (38.026.400)
40 Net cash flow from financing activities (12.635.580) (38.026.400)
50 Net cash flows during the year (14.575.379.810) 85.351.670.328
60 Beginning cash and cash equivalents V.1 96.676.499.466 11.324.829.138
61 Effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates - -
70 Ending cash and cash equivalents V.1 82.101.119.656 96.676.499.466
SCID a7
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Ta Ngoe Thao Pham Xuan Phong
Preparer Chief Accountant

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

See Audited Separate Financial Statements for 2024.

~ AL h inh City, 31 March 2025
\ 9 e 6 5
Q7 CONG TY \('

cOPHAN \C
: *..'J-i: TU PHAT TRIE

Chief Executive Officer

The Audited Separate Financial Statements for 2024 have been disclosed and reported by the
Company to the State Securities Commission, the Hanoi Stock Exchange and posted on the

Company's website at: https://scid.vn.
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VIl. The Company's activities

2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
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Ceremony for admitting new Party members
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2024 Employee Conference
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Preliminary 6-Month Meeting of 2024

DAUN

VA TRIEN

52



ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Commencement Ceremony of Commercial, Service - Office Project
102 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia
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Opening Ceremony and Inauguration of Charmant Suites Hotel
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10t Anniversary Ceremony of Sense City Shopping Mall chain
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Trade Union, Youth Union

Activities of the Party Cell
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company”) presents this statement together with the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 including the Financial Statements of the Company and those of
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”).

Business highlights

Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company has been operating in accordance with the
Business Registration Certificate No. 0304921066, initially registered on 04 April 2007 and 13" amended on
08 December 2022, granted by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment.

Head office:
Address : No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh
City
Tel. : +84 (028) 3836 0143
Fax : +84 (028) 3822 5457

Principal business activities of the Company are:

Management consultancy (except for financial, accounting, legal consultancy);

Construction completion;

Advertising;

Market research and public opinion polling;

Trade introduction and promotion (not performing detonation effects and not using explosive and
combustible substances, chemicals for props, tools in entertainment programs, events and films);
Trading food and foodstuff (implementing according to the Decision No. 64/2009/QD-UBND dated 31
July 2009 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on approving the planning for trading
agricultural products and foodstuff in Ho Chi Minh City and the Decision No. 79/2009/QD-UBND
dated 17 October 2009 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on amending Clause 2, Article 1
of the Decision No. 64/2009/QD-UBND dated 31 July 2009 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh
City);

Retail of audiovisual equipment in specialized stores;

Supply and management of domestic labor resources (except for labor sub-hire);

Legal consultancy (except for financial, accounting and legal consultancy);

Construction consultancy; consultancy on report preparation, investment project development; project
management consultancy; design verification, project estimate; bidding consultancy; general
construction contractor; consultancy on construction investment cost management; supervision of
installation of electrical parts and electrical equipment of power lines and transformer stations; electrical
design of power lines and stations; electromechanical design of construction works; supervision of
construction and completion of civil and industrial works; architectural design of works; interior and
exterior design of works; construction planning design; supervision of installation of air conditioning
and ventilation systems, civil and industrial works; supervision of installation of electrical parts and

electrical equipment of civil and industrial works; topographic survey of construction site; geological
survey of construction works;

General support services;

General cleaning of houses;

Cleaning services for industrial and specialized works;
Landscape care and maintenance services;

General office administration services;

Construction of residential houses;

Construction of non-residential houses;




SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Construction of water supply and drainage works;

Demolition;

Preparation of construction sites;

Other specialized construction activities;

Road construction;

Drainage and wastewater treatment (not operating at the head office);
Construction of telecommunications and information works;
Wholesale of construction materials and other installation equipment;
Commercial brokerage and environmental consultancy;

Wholesale of agricultural and forestry raw materials (except for wood, bamboo, neohouzeaua) and live
animals (not operating at the head office);

Wholesale of other machinery, equipment and spare parts;

Real estate management on a fee or contract basis; real estate brokerage, real estate valuation and real
estate trading floors; house and apartment management;

Other unclassified manufacturing activities;

Other support services related to transportation;

Installation of water supply, drainage, heating and air conditioning systems;

Acting as an agent, broker, auctioneer of goods (no auction business);

Operating restaurants and providing mobile catering services;

Tour operation;

Electrical system installation;

Trading real estate; investment in construction, operating commercial centers, office buildings; leasing
warehouses and yards;

Retail of household electrical appliances, beds, wardrobes, tables, chairs and similar furniture, lamps and
luminaires, other unclassified household appliances in specialized stores;

Installation of other construction systems;

Processing and preserving fruits and vegetables;

Construction of electrical works;

Booking services and support services related to promotion and organization of tours.

Board of Directors and Executive Board

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Company during the year and as of the date of this
statement include:

The Board of Directors

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing/Resigning date
Mr. Vu Anh Khoa Chairman Appointed on 29 April 2022
Mr. Pham Trung Kien Member Re-appointed on 29 April 2022
Mr. Le Truong Son Member Re-appointed on 29 April 2022
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang Member Re-appointed on 29 April 2022
Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Member Appointed on 21 May 2024
Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Member Resigned on 21 May 2024

The Supervisory Board

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing date
Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh Head of the Board Re-appointed on 29 April 2022
Ms. Truong Phan Hoang Thy Member Appointed on 29 April 2022
Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh Member Appointed on 29 April 2022



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (cont.)

The Board of Management

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing/Resigning date
Mr. Pham Trung Kien Chief Executive Officer Re-appointed on 01 January 2023

Mr. Pham Hoang An Deputy Chief Executive Officer Re-appointed on 15 December 2023

Mr. Phan Thanh Duy Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 15 May 2024

Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy Deputy Chief Executive Officer Resigned on 01 May 2024

Legal Representative

The Company’s legal representative during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Pham Trung
Kien — Chief Executive Officer (re-appointed on 01 January 2023).

Auditors

A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024,

Responsibilities of the Board of Management )
The Board of Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, the consolidated financial \¢
performance and the consolidated cash flows of the Group during the year. In order to prepare thesgin

Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Management must:

e select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;

e make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;

o state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Group are followed or not, and all the
material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

e prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group on the going-concern basis, except for the
cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

e design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of materlat A

misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial \2'
Statements.

C‘

/AN
The Board of Management hereby ensures that all the proper accounting books of the Group have been fully /.
recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Group at any time, and that all the accounting’ g;e
books have been prepared in comphance with the applicable Accounting System. The Board of Management.

is also responsible for managing the Group’s assets and consequently has taken appropriate measures to
prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Management hereby commits to the compliance with the aforementioned requirements in
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Management hereby approves the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements which
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position as of 31 December 2024 of the Group, its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in
conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and
relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial

of the Boyof Management, O

Chlef Executlve Officer
Date:-14 April 2025
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No. 1.0986/25/TC-AC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: THE SHAREHOLDERS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements Saigon Co.op Investment Development
Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and its subsidiary (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Group”), which were prepared on 14 April 2025 (from page 6 to page 46) including the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2024, the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements; and responsible for the internal control as the Board of Management

determines necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements to be
free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An au.dit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and
true and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
financial position as of 31 December 2024 of Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company, its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity
with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory

K& Adifin Yal% Cusulting Co., Ltd.
< T TRACH NHIE W ROV HAK\ %2

s \KIEM TOAN VA TU VAN | %

&) >
My T
Hoang Thai Vuong Pham My Tuyen
Partner Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 2129-2023-008-1 Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 3596-2021-008-1

Authorized Signatory
Ho Chi Minh City, 14 April 2025

A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. trading as Baker Tilly A&C is a member of the global network 5
of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities




SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As of 31 December 2024

ITEMS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term financial investments

Trading securities

Provisions for devaluation of trading securities
Held-to-maturity investments

. Short-term receivables

Short-term trade receivables

Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Short-term inter-company receivables

Receivables according to the progress of construction
contract

Receivables for short-term loans

Other short-term receivables

Allowance for short-term doubtful debts

Deficit assets for treatment

. Inventories

Inventories
Allowance for devaluation of inventories

Other current assets

Short-term prepaid expenses

Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from the State
Trading Government bonds

Other current assets

Code

100

110
111
112

120
121
122
123

130
131
132
133

134
135
136
137
139

140
141
149

150
151
152
153
154
155

Note

V.1

V.2a
V.2a
V.2b

V.3a
V.4

V.5
V.6a
V.7

V.8

V.9a

V.16

Ending balance

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

578.664.570.784

209.613.045.664
37.775.920.662
171.837.125.002

311.978.037.810
13.859.293.545
(5.011.393.545)
303.130.137.810

46.877.024.918
15.018.469.744
7.056.117.316

16.600.000.000
23.838.240.919
(15.635.803.061)

1.717.481.614
1.717.481.614

8.478.980.778
2.994.378.943
2.436.202.485
3.048.399.350

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

546.641.775.676

117.031.656.732
26.930.808.063
90.100.848.669

352.062.520.954
13.859.293.545
(4.706.293.545)
342.909.520.954

67.371.074.615
38.855.316.794
4.885.575.716

16.600.000.000
22.963.422.105
(15.933.240.000)

951.324.361
951.324.361

9.225.199.014
3.178.039.824

220.794.726
5.826.364.464

s Ky



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Consolidated Balance Sheet (cont.)

ITEMS

a

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Long-term trade receivables

Long-term prepayments to suppliers
Working capital in affiliates

Long-term inter-company receivables
Receivables for long-term loans

Other long-term receivables

Allowance for long-term doubtful debts

No L s W~

II. Fixed assets

1. Tangible fixed assets

- Historical cost

- Accumulated depreciation
2. Financial leased assets

- Historical cost

- Accumulated depreciation
3. Intangible fixed assets

- Initial cost

- Accumulated amortization

III. Investment property
- Historical costs
- Accumulated depreciation

IV. Long-term assets in process
1. Long-term work in process
2. Construction-in-progress

Long-term financial investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Investments in other entities

Provisions for devaluation of long-term financial
investments

5. Held-to-maturity investments

s 03 N0 =

VI. Other non-current assets

Long-term prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Long-term components and spare parts
Other non-current assets

Goodwill

S0 b L B B

TOTAL ASSETS

Code

200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

220
221
222
223
224
2235
226
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
241
242

250
251
252
253

254
255

260
261
262
263
268
269

270

Note

V.3b

V.6b

V.10

V.11

V.12

V.13

V.2¢c

V.9b
V.14

Ending balance

Beginning balance

1.985.371.612.098

139.560.493.693
28.325.781.693

111.234.712.000

78.787.164.522
75.657.782.840
165.799.920.753
(90.142.137.913)

3.129.381.682
5.946.410.250
(2.817.028.568)

36.078.675.198
57.817.638.519
(21.738.963.321)

497.862.223.112

497.862.223.112

1.228.639.003.624

1.228.639.003.624

1.936.172.510.773

112.337.925.202
26.103.213.202

86.234.712.000

61.305.216.770

60.983.243.314
144.762.651.376
(83.779.408.062)

321.973.456
2.668.580.458
(2.346.607.002)

37.749.107.382
57.817.638.519
(20.068.531.137)

483.766.267.800

483.766.267.800

1.237.027.407.196

1.237.027.407.196

4.444.051.949 3.986.586.423
4.339.055.076 3.904.778.708
104.996.873 81.807.715
2.564.036.182.882 2.482.814.286.449

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements




SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (cont.)

ITEMS
C - LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Short-term trade payables
Short-term advances from customers

Payables to employees
Short-term accrued expenses
Short-term inter-company payables

S

contracts
8. Short-term unearned revenue
9.  Other short-term payables

10. Short-term borrowings and financial leases

11. Provisions for short-term payables
12. Bonus and welfare funds

13. Price stabilization fund

14. Trading Government bonds

o
.-

Non-current liabilities

Long-term trade payables
Long-term advances from customers
Long-term accrued expenses

Long-term inter-company payables
Long-term unearned revenue
Other long-term payables

PN LR W=

e

Convertible bonds
. Preferred shares
. Deferred income tax liability
Provisions for long-term payables

— et
W N - O

Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget

Payables according to the progress of construction

Inter-company payables for working capital

Long-term borrowings and financial leases

. Science and technology development fund

Code

300

310
311
312
313
314
315
316

317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324

330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343

Note

V.15

V.16
V.17

V.18a, ¢

V.19

V.18b, ¢

V.20

Ending balance

Beginning balance

161.167.059.251

47.234.603.460
21.011.269.745
499.243.250
1.763.706.833
4.766.726.677
555.699.743

79.720.245
5.669.709.434

12.888.527.533

113.932.455.791

111.322.903.336

2.609.552.455

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

145.200.061.157

32.464.659.788
1.879.958.144
295.458.171
2.782.351.907
9.088.360.487
159.419.409

72.472.950
6.502.949.451

11.683.689.269

112.735.401.369

173.900.000
110.997.145.176
1.564.356.193



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Balance Sheet (cont.)

ITEMS
D - OWNER'S EQUITY

I.  Owner's equity
1. Owner's capital

Preferred shares

Share premiums

Bond conversion options

Other sources of capital
Treasury stocks

Differences on asset revaluation
Foreign exchange differences

Other funds

. Retained earnings

Retained earnings accumulated
to the end of the previous period

— D Ve N YW

—_0

Investment and development fund
Business arrangement supporting fund

Ordinary shares carrying voting rights

- Retained earnings of the current period

12. Construction investment fund

13. Benefits of non-controlling shareholders

II. Other sources and funds
1. Sources of expenditure
2. Fund to form fixed assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

.-

Ta Ngoc Thao
Preparer

Pham Xuan Phong
Chief Accountant

Code

400

410
411
4lla
411b
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421

42la
421b
422
429

430
431
432

440

7

/
~
<= |

* DAQ T _PHAT i

/" ¢l
.S/ CONG TY

Note Ending balance Beginning balance
2.402.869.123.631 2.337.614.225.292
2.402.869.123.631 2.337.614.225.292

V.21 1.000.000.000.000 1.000.000.000.000
1.000.000.000.000 1.000.000.000.000

V.21 867.538.509.941 858.650.617.915

i ©
- -
V.2l 535.330.613.690 478.963.607.377 .‘T’J
‘N
*
468.475.894.786 478.963.607.377 4.
66.854.718.904 s
V.21 - -

-
b o4
"

2.564.036.182.882

2.482.814.286.449.

CO PHAN

am Trung Kien

Chief Executive Officer

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
ITEMS Code  Note Current year Previous year

1. Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of
services 01 VL1 99.050.317.216 87.316.079.055
2. Revenue deductions 02 - H
3. Netrevenue 10 99.050.317.216 87.316.079.055
4, Cost of sales 11 V1.2 37.139.570.321 24.255.307.337
5. Gross profit 20 61.910.746.895 63.060.771.718
6. Financial income 21 V1.3 20.378.049.788 28.617.895.327
7. Financial expenses 22 V1.4 305.100.000 3.866.988.035
In which: Interest expenses 23 - -
8. Gain or loss in joint ventul;es, associates 24 V.2¢ 66.256.162.217 86.721.795.240
9, Selling expenses 25 VL5 20.868.359.232 19.699.990.679
10. General and administration expenses 26 VIL.6 54.302.471.532 66.162.235.158
11. Net operating profit 30 73.069.028.136 88.671.248.413
12, Other income 31 VL7 1.598.013.899 1.094.787.286
13. Other expenses 32 VI.8 1.199.511.973 82.490.571.412
14. Other profit/(loss) 40 398.501.926 (81.395.784.126)
15. Total accounting profit before tax 50 73.467.530.062 7.275.464.287
16. Current income tax 51 V.16 5.590.804.054 4.603.812.831
17. Deferred income tax 52 V1.9 1.022.007.104 1.172.119
18. Profit after tax 60 66.854.718.904 2.670.479.337
19. Profit after tax of Parent Company 61 66.854.718.904 2.670.230.540
20. Profit after tax of non-controlling shareholders 62 - 248.797
21. Basic earnings per share 70 VI.10 617 11
22. Diluted earnings per share 71 VL10 617 11

inh City, 14 April 2025

= =

Ta Ngoc Thao Pham Xuan Phong
Preparer Chief Accountant

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 10



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect method)

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS
I.  Cash flows from operating activities

1. Profit before tax
Adjustments
- Depreciation/(Amortization) of fixed assets and
investment properties
- Provisions and allowances
- Exchange gain/(loss) due to revaluation of
monetary items in foreign currencies
- Gain/(loss) from investing activities
- Interest expenses
Others
3. Operating profit/(loss) before
changes of working capital
- Increase/(decrease) of receivables
- Increase/(decrease) of inventories
- Increase/(decrease) of payables
- Increase/(decrease) of prepaid expenses
- Increase/(decrease) of trading securities
- Interest paid
- Corporate income tax paid
- Other cash inflows
- Other cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing activities

1. Purchases and construction of fixed assets
and other non-current assets

2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
and other non-current assets

3. Cash outflow for loan, buying debt instruments
of other entities

4. Cash recovered from loan, selling debt instruments

of other entities
5. Investments in other entities
6. Withdrawals of investments in other entities
7. Interest earned, dividends and profits received

Net cash flows from investing activities

Code

01

02
03

04
05
06
07

08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

30

Note

V.10, 11, 12
V.2a,7

V.2¢; V13,7

V.16
V.19
V.19

V.3a, 10; VL7

Current year

Unit: VND

Previous year

73.467.530.062

9.447.260.380
7.663.061

(86.778.310.238)

(3.855.856.735)
(6.855.894.885)
(766.157.253)
12.890.923.775
133.237.653

(5.100.954.582)

7.275.464.287

9.848.189.647
19.800.228.035

(34.019.826.668)

2.904.055.301
(39.025.363.767)
439.479.634
(1.393.021.458)
(2.015.633.770)
(7.508.035)

(4.511.615.651)

30.370.000 2.240.000

(425.352.301) (434.213.603)
(3.949.684.328) (44.041.581.349)
(39.466.569.357) (8.334.358.584)

(727.983.146.275)

195.800.000

(618.522.922.220)

767.762.529.419 565.287.158.655
96.230.895.053 145.334.084.217
96.543.708.840 83.959.762.068

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199 — 205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont.)

ITEMS

III. Cash flows from financing activities

1.

[o QL T N VR )

U

e

Ta Ngoc Thao
Preparer

Proceeds from issuing stocks and capital contributions
from owners

Repayment for capital contributions and re-purchases
of stocks already issued

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment for loan principal

Payments for financial leased principal

Dividends and profit paid to the owners

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows during the year

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Chief Accountant

Code

31
32
33
34
35
36
40
50
60
61

70

R

Pham Xuan Phong

Note Current year Previous year
V.18a (12.635.580) (429.490.903)
(12.635.580) (429.490.903)

92.581.388.932 39.488.689.816

\A 117.031.656.732 77.542.966.916
2 209.613.045.664 117.031.656.732

Pham Trung Kien
Chief Executive Officer

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

City, 14 April 2025
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Sa.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ownership form

Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”
or “the Parent Company™) is a joint stock company.

Operating field

The operating field of the Group is servicing.

Principal business activities

Principal business activities of the Group are to make investment in construction and operate
commercial centers and office buildings; lease premises and assets.

Normal operating cycle
The normal operating cycle of the Group is within 12 months.

Structure of the Group
The Group includes the Parent Company and 3 subsidiaries under the control of the Parent Company.
All subsidiaries are consolidated in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

List of subsidiaries to be consolidated

Principal business

Ownership rate

Voting rate

Ending Beginning

Ending Beginning

Subsidiaries Address activities balance  balance  balance  balance

Sense Cai Be Land lot No. 1436, Map Trading real estate,

Trading Service No. 35, Zone 2, Cai Be land use right of

One Member Town, Cai Be District, owners, users or

Limited Company  Tien Giang Province lessees 100,00% 100,00% 100,00% 100,00%

Saigon - Ben Tre No. 26A Tran Quoc Retailing goods and

Trading One Tuan Street, An Hoi leasing services

Member Company ~ Ward, Ben Tre City,

Limited Ben Tre Province 100,00% 100,00% 100,00% 100,00%

Saigon - Pleiku No. 29 Nguyen Van Cu Trading real estate,

Services Trading Street, la Kring Ward, land wuse right of

One Member Pleiku City, Gia Lai owners, users or

Limited Company Province lessees 100,00% 100,00% 100,00% 100,00%
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 13



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

5b.

Associates

List of associates reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ownership rate

Voting rate

Ending Beginning

Ending Beginning

Address Principal business activities balance balance  balance balance
Saigon - Ca Mau No. 9 Tran Hung Dao Retailing goods and leasing
Trading Service Street, Ward 5, Ca Mau services
Company Limited City, Ca Mau Province 36,75% 36,75% 36,75% 36,75%
Saigon Cantho No. 1 Hoa Binh Avenue, Retailing goods and leasing
Trading Company Ninh Kieu District, Can services

Tho City 34,00% 34,00% 34,00% 34,00%
Saigon Co.op 3" Floor, No. 199-205 Operating supermarket
International Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, according to Co.op Mart
Investment Company Pham Ngu Lao Ward, supermarket system
Limited District 1, Ho Chi Minh

City 49,00% 49,00% 49,00% 49,00%
Co.op Mart Bien Hoa No. 121 Pham Van Operating supermarket
Supermarket and Thuan Street, Tan Tien according to Co.op Mart
Trading Services Ward, Bien Hoa City, supermarket system v
Company Limited Dong Nai Province 29,00% 29,00% 29,00% 29,00%
Vietsin Commercial Complex No. 2, Tan Trading real estate, land use
Complex Phong Ward, District 7, rights of owners, users or
Development Joint ~ Ho Chi Minh City lessees
Stock Company 36,00% 36,00% 36,00% 36,00%
Saigon - Xuan Oai Lot T3-1.1, Saigon Hi- Trading real estate, land use
Services Trading Tech Park, La Xuan Oai rights of owners, users or
Limited Company Street, Tang Nhon Phu A lessees

Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho

Chi Minh City 49,00% 49,00% 49,00% 49,00%
Dong Bac Land lot No. 7, 25/4 Building residential houses
Commercial Center  Street, Hong Gai Ward,
Development Ha Long City, Quang
Investment Company Ninh Province
Limited 40,00% 40,00% 40,00% 40,00%
Saigon - Chau Doc  Group 21, Chau Quoi 3 Retailing goods in
Company Limited Cluster, Chau Phu B supermarkets and shopping

Ward, Chau Doc City, malls

An Giang Province 25,00% 25,00% 25,00% 25,00%

6.  Statement of information comparability on the Consolidated Financial Statements

The corresponding figures of the previous year can be comparable with figures of the current year.

T Headcount

As of the balance sheet date, the Group’s headcount is 131 (headcount at the beginning of the year:

119).

I

1.  Fiscal year

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

The fiscal year of the Group is from 01 January to 31 December annually.

2. Accounting currency unit

The accounting currency unit is Vietnamese Dong (VND) because the Group’s transactions are
primarily made in VND.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

IIL.

1.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Group applies the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, which were issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014,
the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 guiding the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 giving guidance on the
preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements and other Circulars guiding the
implementation of Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Statement of the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Management of the Parent Company ensures to follow all the requirements of the
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were
issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the Circular No.
53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014
and other Circulars guiding the implementation of Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of
Finance in preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for the information
related to cash flows).

Consolidation bases

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and
those of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an enterprise that is controlled by the Parent Company. The
control exists when the Parent Company has the power to directly or indirectly govern the financial and
operating policies of the subsidiary to obtain economic benefits from its activities. In determining the
control power, the potential voting right arising from options or debt and capital instruments that can be
converted into common shares as of the balance sheet date should also be taken into consideration.

The financial performance of the subsidiaries, which are acquired or disposed during the year, are

included in the Consolidated Income Statement from the date of acquisition or disposal of investments
in these subsidiaries.

The Financial Statements of the Parent Company and those of subsidiaries used for consolidation are
prepared in the same accounting period and apply consistently accounting policies to the same types of
transactions and events in similar circumstances. In the case that the accounting policy of a subsidiary
is different from the accounting policy applied consistently in the Group, the Financial Statements of

that subsidiary will be properly adjusted before being used for the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Intra-group balances in the Balance Sheet and intra-group transactions and unrealized profits resulting
from these transactions must be completely eliminated. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are also eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Benefits of non-controlling shareholders reflect profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries, which are
not hold by the Group and presented in a separate item of the Consolidated Income Statement and
Consolidated Balance Sheet (classified under owner’s equity). Benefits of non-controlling shareholders
include the values of their non-controlling benefits at the initial date of business combination and those
arise within the ranges of changes in owner’s equity from the date of business combination. The losses
arising in the subsidiary are attributed equally to the ownership rate of non-controlling shareholders,

even if such losses are higher than the interest owned by these shareholders in net assets of the
subsidiaries.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 15
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

3.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and cash in bank. Cash equivalents are short-term investments of which the
due dates do not exceed 3 months from the dates of the investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value as of the balance
sheet date.

Financial investments
Trading securities

Investments classified as trading securities are those held by the Group for the trading purpose with the
aim of making profit.

Trading securities are recognized at costs which include fair value of the payments made at the time of
the transaction plus other costs attributable to transaction costs.

The time of recognizing trading securities is when the Group acquires the ownership, as follows:
e For listed securities: recognized at the time of order-matching (T+0).
e For unlisted securities: recognized at the time of acquiring official ownership as stipulated by law.

Dividends incurred prior to the acquisition of trading securities are deducted into the costs of such

securities. Dividends incurred after the acquisition of such securities are recorded in Group’s financial
income.

Provisions for devaluation of trading securities are made for each particular type of securities in the
market of which the fair value is lower than costs. The fair value of trading securities listed on the stock
market or traded on UPCOM is the closing price at the balance sheet date. In case where the stock
market or UPCOM is not available for transactions as at the balance sheet date, the fair value of shares
is the closing price of the preceding transaction with the balance sheet date.

Increases/decreases in the provisions for devaluation of trading securities as of the balance sheet date
are recorded into financial expenses.

Gain or loss from transfer of trading securities is recognized into financial income or financial expenses.
The costs are determined in accordance with the mobile weighted average method.

Held-to-maturity investments
Investments are classified as held-to-maturity investments that the Group intends and is able to hold to

maturity. Held-to-maturity investments only include held-to-maturity term deposits for the purpose of
receiving periodical interest.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost including the purchase cost and other
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these investments are recorded at recoverable value. Interest
from these held-to-maturity investments after acquisition date is recognized in Income Statement on the
basis of the interest income to be received. Interest incurred prior to the Group’s acquisition of held-to-
maturity investments is deducted into the costs at the acquisition time.

When there is reliable evidence proving that a part or the whole investment cannot be recovered and the

loss is reliably measured, the loss is recognized as financial expenses during the year and directly
deducted into the investment costs.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 16
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

Loans

Loans are measured at costs less allowance for doubtful debts. Allowance for doubtful debts of loans is
made on the basis of estimated losses.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity which the Group has significant influence but not the control to govern the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the right to participate in making the associate’s
financial and operating policies but not control those policies.

Investments in associates are recorded as in the owner’s equity method. Accordingly, the investment in
associates is initially recorded at costs on the Consolidated Financial Statements and then adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. If the Group’s share of
loss of associates exceeds or equals the carrying amount of an investment, the investment is then
reported at nil (0) value on the Consolidated Financial Statements, except when the Group has
obligations to pay on behalf of the associates to satisfy obligations of the associates.

The Financial Statements of the associates are prepared for the accounting period that is the same with
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group. In the case that the accounting policy of the
associates is different from the accounting policy applied consistently in the Group, the Financial

Statements of the associates will be properly adjusted before being used for the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Unrealized profits/(losses) arising from transactions with the associates are eliminated in proportion to
the amount under the Group’s ownership in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Receivables
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is made according to the
following principles:

e Trade receivables reflect receivables concerning the commercial nature arising from purchase and
sale transactions between the Group and customers who are independent to the Group.
e Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irrelevant to

purchase and sale transactions.

Allowance is made for each doubtful debt on the basis of estimated loss.

Increases/decreases in the obligatory allowance for doubtful debts as of the balance sheet date are
recorded into general and administration expenses.

Inventories
Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Costs of inventories, i.e. merchandise, comprise costs of purchases and other directly relevant costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions.

Stock-out costs are determined in accordance with the weighted average method and recorded in line
with the perpetual method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 17



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

Allowance for devaluation of inventories is recognized for each type of inventories when their costs are
higher than their net realizable values. Increases/decreases in the obligatory allowance for devaluation
of inventories as of the balance sheet date are recorded into costs of sales.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses incurred and relevant to financial performance in several
fiscal years. Prepaid expenses of the Group mainly include expenses of tools, expenses for installation
of information technology system, expenses for renovation and relocation of office and expenses for

asset repair. These prepaid expenses are allocated over the prepayment period or period in which
corresponding benefits are realized.

Expenses of tools

Expenses of tools being put into use are allocated into costs in accordance with the straight-line method
for the maximum period of 3 years.

Expenses for installation of information technology system

Expenses for installation of information technology system are allocated into costs in accordance with
the straight-line method for the maximum period of 3 years.

Expenses for renovation and relocation of office

Expenses for renovation and relocation of office are allocated into costs in accordance with the straight-
line method for the maximum period of 3 years.

Expenses for asset repair

Expenses for asset repair incurred once with high value are allocated into costs in accordance with the
straight-line method for the maximum period of 3 years

Operating leased assets
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident
to ownership belonging to the lessor. The lease expenses are allocated in the Group’s operation costs in

accordance with the straight-line method over the lease term and do not depend on the method of lease
payment.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical
costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Group to bring the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Other expenses arising subsequent to initial recognition are included into
historical costs of fixed assets only if it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of these assets. Those which do not meet
the above conditions will be recorded into operation costs during the year.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are

written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The depreciation years applied are as follows:

Fixed assets Years
Buildings and structures 16 - 25
Machinery and equipment 03-10
Vehicles 03-10
Office equipment 03 -08
Other tangible fixed assets 03-05

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 18
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SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

10. Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are determined by their initial costs less accumulated amortization.

Initial costs of intangible fixed assets include all the costs paid by the Group to bring the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other costs relevant to intangible fixed assets arising subsequent
to initial recognition are included into operation costs during the period only if these costs are associated

with a specific intangible fixed asset and result in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of these assets.

When an intangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its initial costs and accumulated amortization are

written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

The Group’s intangible fixed assets include:

Computer software o
Expenses attributable to computer software, which is not a part associated with the relevant hardware, A
will be capitalized. Costs of computer software include all the expenses paid by the Group until the date\*

the software is put into use. Computer software is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method/
in 5 years.

Website

The initial costs of the Company’s website include all the expenses paid by the Group until the date the

website is put into use. The Company’s website is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method
in 3 years.

£S
S

11. Investment properties
Investment property is property which is land use right, a building or part of a building, infrastructure
held by the Group to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. Investment properties for lease are
measured at their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes all the expenses

paid by the Group or the fair value of other considerations given to acquire the assets up to the date of
its acquisition or construction.

Expenses related to investment property arising subsequent to initial recognition should be added to the
historical cost of the investment property when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of

the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, will flow to the
Group.

When the investment property is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are

written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposals is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

The transfer from owner-occupied property or inventories into investment property shall be made when,
and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by the end of owner-occupation and the
commencement of an operating lease to another party or the end of construction. The transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories shall be made when, and only when,
there is a change in use evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or the commencement
of development with a view to sale. The transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property

or inventories does not change the historical cost or net book value of investment property at the date of
transfer.

Investment property for lease is depreciated/(amortized) in accordance with the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation/(amortization) years of the investment property are

as follows:

Fixed assets Years
Land use right 39 -47
House 30

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 19
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12,

13.

14.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress reflects the expenses (including relevant interest expenses following the
accounting policies of the Group) directly attributable to assets under construction, machinery and
equipment under installation for purposes of production, leasing and management as well as the repair
of fixed assets in progress. These assets are recorded at historical costs and not depreciated.

Business combination and goodwill

The business combination is accounted by applying acquisition method. The costs of business
combination include the fair values as at the acquisition date of the exchanged assets, the incurred or
assumed liabilities as well as the equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any cost directly attributable to the business combination. The acquired assets, the

identifiable and contingent liabilities assumed from the business combination are recognized at their fair
values as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination covers some accounting periods, the cost of business combination equals
the total investment made at the date of obtaining the control of subsidiaries plus the amount of previous
investments which are re-evaluated at fair value as at the date of obtaining the control of subsidiaries.
The difference between the re-evaluated amount and the cost of investment shall be recorded in the
financial performance provided that the Group does not have any significant influence on subsidiaries
prior the date of obtaining the control and the investment in subsidiaries is presented in line with the
cost method. In case where the Group has significant influence on the subsidiaries prior the date of
obtaining the control the investment in subsidiaries is presented in line with the equity method, the
difference between the re-evaluated amount and the cost of investment determined in line with the equity
method shall be recorded in the financial performance; and the difference between the investment
determined in line with the equity method and the cost of investment shall be directly recorded in
“Retained earnings” of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The excess of the cost of business combination over the ownership share of the Group in the net fair
value of the assets, the identifiable and contingent liabilities of acquiree which are recognized at the
date obtaining the control of subsidiaries is recognized as goodwill. If the ownership share of the Group
in the net fair value of the assets, the identifiable and contingent liabilities of acquiree which are
recognized at the date of obtaining the control of subsidiaries exceeds the cost of business combination,
the difference will be included in the financial performance.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders as at the date of business combination is initially measured
on the basis of the ownership share of non-controlling shareholders in the fair values of the assets, the
liabilities and the inherent liabilities recognized.

Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recorded for the amounts payable in the future associated with the

goods and services received. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates for the
amounts payable.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables is made on the

basis of following principles:

e Trade payables reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods, services,
or assets, of which the seller is an independent entity with the Group.

e Accrued expenses reflect expenses for goods, services received from suppliers or supplied to
customers but have not been paid, invoiced or lack of accounting records and supporting documents;
pay on leave payable to employees; and accrual of operation expenses.

e  Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of goods
or provisions of services.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 20
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15,

16.

17.

The payables and accrued expenses are classified as short-term and long-term items in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet on the basis of their remaining term as of the balance sheet date.

Owner’s capital

The contributed capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by the Parent Company’s
shareholders.

Profit distribution
Profit after tax is distributed to the shareholders after appropriation for funds under the Charter of the
Company as well as legal regulations and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The distribution of profit to the shareholders is made with consideration toward non-cash items in the
retained earnings that may affect cash flows and payment of dividends such as profit due to revaluation

of assets contributed as investment capital, profit due to revaluation of monetary items, financial
instruments and other non-cash items.

Dividends are recorded as payables upon approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Recognition of revenue and income

Revenue from sales of merchandise

Revenue from sales of merchandise shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

e The Group transfers most of risks and benefits incident to the ownership of merchandise to
customers,

e The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the merchandise sold.

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contracts stipulate that buyers have the
right to return merchandise purchased under specific conditions, the revenue is recorded only when
those specific conditions are no longer exist and buyers retains no right to return merchandise
(except for the case that such returns are in exchange for other goods or services).

e The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with sale
transactions.

e The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from provisions of services

Revenue from provisions of services shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

e  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
entitled to return the services provided under specific conditions, the revenue is recognized only
when these specific conditions are no longer existed and the buyer is not entitled to return the
services provided.

e The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with the provision
of services.
e  The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period can be measured reliably.

e  The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

In the case that the services are provided in several accounting periods, the determination of revenue is
done on the basis of the volume of work done as of the balance sheet date.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 21
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18.

19.

Revenue from operating lease

Revenue from operating lease is recognized in accordance with the straight-line method during the lease
term. Rentals received in advance for several periods are allocated to revenues in consistence with the
lease term. )

Interest
Interest is recorded, based on the term and the actual interest rate applied in each particular period.

Dividends and profit received

Dividends and profit received are recognized when the Group has the right to receive dividends or profit
from the capital contribution. Particularly, the dividends paid in form of shares are not recorded as an
increase in value, but the increasing quantity of shares is followed up.

Expenses

Expenses are those that result in outflows of the economic benefits and are recorded at the time of

transactions or when incurrence of the transaction is reliable regardless of whether payment for expenses
is made or not.

Expenses and their corresponding revenues are simultaneously recognized in accordance with matching
principle. In the event that matching principle conflicts with prudence principle, expenses are recognized
based on the nature and regulations of accounting standards in order to guarantee that transactions can
be fairly and truly reflected.

Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax includes current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is the tax amount computed based on the taxable income. Taxable income is different
from accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between tax and accounting
figures, non-deductible expenses as well as those of non-taxable income and losses brought forward.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is the amount of corporate income tax payable or refundable due to temporary
differences between book values of assets and liabilities serving the preparation of the Financial
Statements and the values for tax purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all the
temporary taxable differences. Deferred income tax assets are recorded only when there is an assurance

on the availability of taxable income in the future against which the temporarily deductible differences
can be used.

Carrying values of deferred corporate income tax assets are considered as of the balance sheet date and
will be reduced to the rate that ensures enough taxable income against which the benefits from part of
or all of the deferred income tax can be used. Deferred corporate income tax assets, which have not been
recorded before, are considered as of the balance sheet date and are recorded when there is certainly
enough taxable income to use these unrecognized deferred corporate income tax assets.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are determined at the estimated rate to be
applied in the year when the assets are recovered or the liabilities are settled based on the effective tax
rates as of the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax is recognized in the Income Statement. In the
case that deferred income tax is related to the items of the owner’s equity, corporate income tax will be
included in the owner’s equity.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 22
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20.

21.

2a.

The Group shall offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if:

o The Group has the legal right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities; and

e Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are relevant to corporate income tax
which is under the management of one tax authority either:
- Of the same subject to corporate income tax; or
- The Group has intention to pay current income tax liabilities and current income tax assets on a

net basis or recover tax assets and settle tax liability simultaneously in each future period to the

extent that the majority of deferred income tax liabilities or deferred income tax assets are paid
or recovered.

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Group in case that party is able to control the Group or to
cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the Group. A party is also

considered a related party of the Group in case that party is under the same control or is subject to the
same material effects.

Considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than its legal
form.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in manufacturing or

providing products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in manufacturing
or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

The segment information is prepared and presented in conformity with the accounting policies
applicable to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 553:221.296 1.013.316.695
Cash in bank 37.222.699.366 25.917.491.368
Cash equivalents (bank deposit of which the principal
maturity is from 3 months or less) 171.837.125.002 90.100.848.669
Total 209.613.045.664 117.031.656.732

Financial investments

The financial investments of the Group include trading securities, held-to-maturity investments and
investments in associates. The Group’s financial investments are as follows:

Trading securities ;
As of the balance sheet date, the Group invests in 1.017.000 shares of Thu Duc Trading and Import

Export Joint Stock Company at the acquisition price and acquisition cost of totally VND
13.859.293.545. The fair value as of 31 December 2024 is VND 8.847.900.000.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

Changes in provisions for impairments of trading securities are as follows:

Beginning balance
Additional provisions
Ending balance

2b.  Held-to-maturity investments
This item reflects the 6-month deposits.
2c.  Investments in associates
Ending balance

Profit incurred

Original after investment

Current year

Previous year

4.706.293.545 839.305.510
305.100.000 3.866.988.035
5.011.393.545 4.706.293.545

Beginning balance

Profit incurred

Original after investment

amounts date Total

amounts date

Saigon - Ca Mau
Trading Service
Company Limited @
Saigon Cantho
Trading Company @
Saigon Co.op
[nternational
Investment Company
Limited @)

Co.op Mart Bien Hoa
Supermarket and
Trading Services
Company Limited (¥)
Vietsin  Commercial 4
Complex
Development  Joint ;
Stock Company 754.099.056.000
Saigon - Xuan Oai
Services Trading
Limited Company )
Dong Bac
Commercial Center
Development
Investment Company
Limited i)

Saigon - Chau Doc
Company Limited i)
Total

74.970.000.000 (6.981.404.013)  67.988.595.987  74.970.000.000 (7.821.780.966)

74.800.000.000 18.398.350.224  93.198.350.224 74.800.000.000 16.478.507.957

24.500.000.000 261.665.963  24.761.665.963 24.500.000.000 698.716.674  25.198.716.674

7.440.520.518 16.920.294.129 X

9.006.053.075  16.446.573.593 7.440.520.518  9.479.773.611

158.374.591.079  912.473.647.079  754.099.056.000 171.726.783.587 925.825.839.587

53.900.000.000  3.578.614.524  57.478.614.524 53.900.000.000 2.218.924.499  56.118.924.499

32.000.000.000  (194.375.719)  31.805.624.281 32.000.000.000 50.778.279  32.050.778.279

18.750.000.000  5.735.931.973  24.485.931.973
1.040.459.576.518 188.179.427.106 1.228.639.003.624

18.750.000.000  3.736.127.037  22.486.127.037
1.040.459.576.518 196.567.830.678 1.237.027.407.196

@ According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 2000969020, initially registered on 20 May 2010,
11™ amended on 10 December 2019, granted by Ca Mau Province Department of Planning and
Investment, the Group invests VND 74.970.000.000 in Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company
Limited, equivalent to 36,75% of charter capital.

@ According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 1800502219, initially registered on 08 November
2012, 18" amended on 12 February 2019, granted by Can Tho City Department of Planning and
Investment, the Group invests VND 74.800.000.000 in Saigon Cantho Trading Company, equivalent to
34,00% of charter capital.

@ According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0310384927, initially registered on 15 October
2010, 2™ amended on 12 December 2015, granted by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and
Investment, the Group invests VND 24.500.000.000 in Saigon Co.op International Investment Company
Limited, equivalent to 49,00% of charter capital.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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™) According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 4702001225, 14" amended on 22 May 2019,
granted by Dong Nai Province Department of Planning and Investment, the Group invests VND

7.440.520.518 in Co.op Mart Bien Hoa Supermarket and Trading Services Company Limited,
equivalent to 29,00% of charter capital.

™ The Group invests VND 754.099.056.000 in Vietsin Commercial Complex Development Joint Stock
Company, equivalent to 36,00% of charter capital.

™) According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0315949585, initially registered on 08 October

2019, granted by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment, the Group invests VND

53.900.000.000 in Saigon - Xuan Oai Services Trading Limited Company, equivalent to 49,00% of
charter capital.
™) According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 5702088237, initially registered on 16 June 2021,
granted by Quang Ninh Province Department of Planning and Investment, the Group invests VND
32.000.000.000 in Dong Bac Commercial Center Development Investment Company Limited,
equivalent to 40,00% of charter capital.

i) According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 1601972058, initially registered on 13 May 2015,
4™ amended on 28 June 2024, granted by An Giang Province Department of Planning and Investment,

the Group invests VND 18.750.000.000 in Saigon - Chau Doc Company Limited, equivalent to 25,00%
of charter capital.

The value of the Group’s ownership in the associates is presented in the attached Appendix 1.

Operation of the associates

The associates have been in normal operations and have not experienced any significant changes as
compared to those of the previous year.

Transactions with the associates
Significant transactions between the Group and its associates are as follows:

Current year Previous year
Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company Limited
Loan interest 832.273.974 996.000.006
Provision of management consultancy service 2.660.765.831 3.194.301.756
Receivables for performance of sales promotion
program 2L I 94.347.429
Saigon Cantho Trading Company
Provision of management consultancy service 4.709.393.549 7.364.788.057
Receivables for performance of sales promotion 189.472.809 150.421.619
program
Sales of merchandise 942.130 -
Purchase of merchandise - 1.095.455
Saigon Co.op International Investment Company
Limited
Profit received 2.352.000.000 4.018.000.000
Co.op Mart Bien Hoa Supermarket and Trading Services Company Limited
Profit received 2.225.945.760 2.971.784.782
Vietsin Commercial Complex Development Joint Stock Company
Provision of management consultancy service 6.879.103.380 6.678.741.153
Dividends received 70.066.620.029 . 108.720.000.000
Saigon - Xuan Oai Services Trading Limited Company
Profit received _ - 2.584.786.098

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 25
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3.  Trade receivables
3a. Short-term trade receivables
Ending balance Beginning balance

Receivables from related parties 13.750.290.606 38.335.509.615
Saigon Co.op 3.849.534.947 25.240.864.195
Branch of Saigon Co.op - Co.opmart Cai Be 2.931.219.061 -
Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company Limited 6.042.638.965 5.519.155.220
Saigon - Van Dong One Member Limited Company 503.448.817 164.816.299
Vietsin Commercial Complex Development Joint
Stock Company - 1.836.653.814
Saigon Cantho Trading Company 423.448.816 5.574.020.087
Receivables from other customers 1.268.179.138 519.807.179
Total 15.018.469.744 38.855.316.794
In which, the receivables (exclusive of VAT) related to liquidation of fixed assets are VND 220.909.091
(this receivable amount did not incur at the beginning of the year).

3b. Long-term trade receivables

This item reflects the receivables from related parties. Details are as follows:
Ending balance Beginning balance

Saigon - Van Dong One Member Limited Company 18.183.391.507 14.968.980.443
Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company Limited 10.142.390.186 11.134.232.759
Total 28.325.781.693 26.103.213.202

4.  Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Ending balance

_Beginning balance

Thanh Phu Construction Joint Stock Company - 3.936.498.627
National General Construction Consulting Joint Stock

Company 1.330.804.444 -
Phuoc Thanh Construction Corporation 5.670.043.872 -
Other suppliers 55.269.000 949.077.089
Total 7.056.117.316 4.885.575.716

In which, prepayments to suppliers for construction-in-progress are VND 5.939.395.758 (there were no
prepayments at the beginning of the year).

5.  Receivables for short-term loans
This item reflects the loan to Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company Limited (a related party) at
the interest rate of 5%/year.

6.  Other receivables

6a. Other short-term receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Value Allowance Value Allowance

BMC Ltd. @ 15.635.803.061(15.635.803.061) 15.933.240.000(15.933.240.000)
Short-term deposits 60.000.000 - 45.000.000 -
Advances 3.677.596.800 - 2.526.000.000 -
Term deposit interest to be
received 2.633.215.549 - 3.678.878.585 -

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 26
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(i)

6b.

Ending balance Beginning balance
Value Allowance Value Allowance
Accrued revenue on
management consultancy 1.665.412.321 - 753.782.410 -
Other short-term receivables 166.213.188 - 26.521.110 -
Total 23.838.240.919(15.635.803.061) 22.963.422.105(15.933.240.000)

This is the receivable amount from BMC Ltd. under the Contract No. 645/HP/2011 dated 05 December
2011 for sales of future-formed assets between the Company and BMC Ltd. However, BMC Ltd. fails
to continue contract performance as agreed, so the Company filed a lawsuit to the People’s Court of
District 1, requesting BMC Ltd. to repay the costs paid by the Company for the project. On 15 August
2023, the People’s Court of District 1 issued the Decision recognizing the agreement between the
concerned parties. BMC Ltd. accordingly must repay the principal amount of VND 17.433.240.000 to
the Company. The Group fully made allowance for the remaining receivable amount from BMC Ltd.

Other long-term receivables
This item reflects long-term deposits. Details are as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
Deposit to Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning
and Investment for performance of project in An Phu
Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City 85.183.000.000 85.183.000.000
Thanh Do Group Construction Corporation — deposit
for contract performance @ 25.000.000.000 -
Long-term deposit for leasing premises 1.051.712.000 1.051.712.000
Total 111.234.712.000 86.234.712.000

This is the deposit for Thanh Do Group Construction Corporation with regards to the lease of the
construction works, i.e. Commercial Center in My Thuan Commerce — Service — Tourism Area project,
Tan Vinh Thuan Hamlet, Tan Ngai Ward, Vinh Long City, Vinh Long Province.

Allowance for short-term doubtful receivables
This item reflects the irrecoverable receivables from BMC Ltd. (see Note No. V.6a). The Group has

made the allowance for this receivable amount at the rate of 100%.

Changes in allowances for doubtful receivables are as follows:

Current year Previous year
Beginning balance 15.933.240.000 -
Additional allowances - 15.933.240.000
Reversal of allowances (297.436.939) -
Ending balance 15.635.803.061 15.933.240.000
Inventories
Ending balance Beginning balance
Materials and supplies 25.024.354 17.981.818
Tools 52.814.000 16.486.500
Merchandise 1.639.643.260 916.856.043
Total 1.717.481.614 951.324.361

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 27
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9.  Prepaid expenses

9a.  Short-term prepaid expenses
Ending balance Beginning balance
Expenses of tools 131.569.769 203.177.448
Royalties 894.051.237 695.860.781
Consultancy service charges 985.700.000 1.115.000.000
Insurance premiums 26.150.886 26.314.739
Expenses for maintenance of information technology
system 40.995.600 20.400.000
Other short-term prepaid expenses 915.911.451 1.117.286.856
Total 2.994.378.943 3.178.039.824
9b.  Long-term prepaid expenses
' Ending balance Beginning balance
Expenses of tools 1.002.403.450 141.778.327
Expenses for office renovation and relocation 834.721.465 1.339.751.698
Expenses for brand researching, developing and
positioning 682.793.491 1.102.626.826
Expenses for asset repair 1.410.223.701 895.808.860
Expenses for IT system installation - 324.003.312
Other long-term prepaid expenses 408.912.969 100.809.685
Total 4.339.055.076 3.904.778.708
10. Tangible fixed assets
Buildings and  Machinery and Office Other tangible
structures equipment Vehicles equipment fixed assets Total

Historical costs
Beginning balance
Acquisition during the

105.482.228.325  19.121.921.727

2.297.083.092

11.112.544.164

6.748.874.068  144.762.651.376

year - - 1.071.653.704 149.039.000 85.525.700 1.306.218.404
Completed

constructions 8.126.801.582  7.959.193.553 - 1.097.816.895  3.567.726.580  20.751.538.610
Liquidation during the

year - - (1.020.487.637) - - (1.020.487.637)
Ending balance 113.609.029.907 27.081.115.280  2.348.249.159  12.359.400.059  10.402.126.348 165.799.920.753
In which:

Assets fully depreciated

but still in use - 18.987.867.182 180.250.000  8.641.220.775  6.748.874.068  34.558.212.025

Assets waiting for
liquidation - -

Depreciation

1.316.947.437
238.200.331

(943.676.779)

9.751.931.884

971.041.121

6.748.874.068

376.102.559

83.779.408.062
7.306.406.630

(943.676.779)

611.470.989

10.722.973.005

7.124.976.627

90.142.137.913

980.135.655

1.360.612.280

60.983.243.314

Beginning balance 46.953.676.443  19.007.978.230
Depreciation during the

year 5.028.656.788 692.405.831
Liquidation during the

year - -
Ending balance 51.982.333.231  19.700.384.061
Carrying values

Beginning balance 58.528.551.882 113.943.497
Ending balance 61.626.696.676 7.380.731.219
In which:

1.736.778.170

1.636.427.054

3.277.149.721

75.657.782.840

Assets temporarily not in use -
Assets waiting for liquidation - -

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

11. Intangible fixed assets

Computer
software Website Total
Initial costs
Beginning balance 2.455.580.458 213.000.000 2.668.580.458
Acquisition during the year 3.277.829.792 - 3.277.829.792
Ending balance 5.733.410.250 213.000.000 5.946.410.250
In which:
Assets fully amortized but still in use 2.160.580.458 - 2.160.580.458
Amortization
Beginning balance 2.344.316.684 2.290.318 2.346.607.002
Amortization during the year 399.421.562 71.000.004 470.421.566
Ending balance 2.743.738.246 73.290.322 2.817.028.568
Carrying values 8
Beginning balance 111.263.774 210.709.682 321.973.456.
Ending balance 2.989.672.004 139.709.678 3.129.381.681};
In which: cN
Assets temporarily not in use - -
Assets waiting for liquidation - -
12. Investment properties
Land use right House Total
Historical/Initial costs
Beginning balance 28.058.582.064  29.759.056.455 57.817.638.519
Ending balance 28.058.582.064 29.759.056.455 57.817.638.519
In which:
Assets fully depreciated/amortized but still
leasing « " w
Depreciation/Amortization
Beginning balance 4.666.560.312 15.401.970.825 20.068.531.137
Depreciation/Amortization during the year 626.280.504 1.044.151.680 1.670.432.184
Ending balance 5.292.840.816 16.446.122.505  21.738.963.321
Carrying values
Beginning balance 23.392.021.752 14.357.085.630 37.749.107.382
Ending balance 22.765.741.248 13.312.933.950  36.078.675.198

According to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 05 “Investment property”, it is required to present
fair value of investment property as of the balance sheet date. However, the Group has not had conditions

to measure fair value of investment property.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

List of investment properties as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Historical/Initial Accumulated Carrying
costs depreciation/amortization values

Right to use land at No. 253 Dien
Bien Phu Street, Ward 7, District 3,
Ho Chi Minh City 5.530.000.000 1.618.824.743  3.911.175.257
Buildings and structures at No. 253
Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 7,
District 3, Ho Chi Minh City 29.759.056.455 16.446.122.505 13.312.933.950
Right to use land at No. 102 Nam Ky
Khoi Nghia Street, District 1, Ho Chi

Minh City 22.528.582.064 3.674.016.073  18.854.565.991
Total 57.817.638.519 21.738.963.321 36.078.675.198

13. Construction-in-progress

Increases Inclusion into
Beginning during the fixed assets Inclusion into
balance year during the year expenses Ending balance
Acquisition of fixed assets 3.025.528.333  8.074.234.112  (10.704.024.377) - 395.738.068
Large repair of fixed assets 1.118.458.512  1.267.513.594 - (1.659.358.620) 726.613.486
Construction-in-progress 479.622.280.955 31.428.444.540 (14.310.853.937) - 496.739.871.558
- Technical infrastructure of
developed urban area in An
Phu Ward, Thu Duc City ¥ 476.395.533.099 - - - 476.395.533.099
- Project at No. 102 Nam Ky
Khoi Nghia 2.886.885.208 17.257.582.342 - - 20.144.467.550
- Sense City Pleiku 199.870.909 - - - 199.870.909
- SenseMarket Cai Be 139.991.739 14.170.862.198 (14.310.853.937) - -
Total 483.766.267.800 40.770.192.246 (25.014.878.314) (1.659.358.620) 497.862.223.112

@ This is Housing - Trade and Service Complex Project on the land area of about 6,9 ha, the Developed
Urban Area in An Phu Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City. The project progress has been delayed
over the required timeline according to the Investment Policy Decision No. 4057/QD-UNBD dated 25
September 2019 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The Company sent a Statement to the
competent authorities requesting to adjust the investment policy as well as carry out procedures to apply
for land assignment for the project continuity.

The Company, No Va Land Investment Group Corporation and Nova An Phu Company Limited signed
the Project Development Cooperation Contract No. 01/2016/HPHTPTDA/SCID-NVLG dated 30
December 2016. However, in fact, the involved parties have not reached agreement on the contractual
cooperation plan due to many objective reasons and are submitting an application to Vietnam
International Arbitration Center requesting for the dispute resolution. On 11 March 2025, Vietnam
International Arbitration Center issued a judgement accepting the claim of the petitioner, i.e. No Va
Land Investment Group Corporation; Nova An Phu Company Limited, and the defendant, i.e. the

Company is required to fully fulfill its obligations as stipulated in the signed Project Development
Cooperation Contract.

14. Deferred income tax assets
I14a. Recognized deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are in relation to temporarily deductible differences. Details during the year
are as follows:

Current year Previous year
Beginning balance 81.807.715 277.931.396
Inclusion into operation results 23.189.158 (196.123.681)
Ending balance 104.996.873 81.807.715

The corporate income tax rate used for determining deferred income tax assets is 20%.

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 30
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14b. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets

0}

15.

16.

The Group has not recognized deferred income tax assets for the taxable losses brought forward to offset

against the income subject to tax of the following years. Details of unrecognized taxable losses are as
follows:

VND
2021 ® 4.065.005.854
2022 10.922.133.938
2023 98.471.067.068
2024 ' 21.645.288.766
Total 135.103.495.626

These taxable losses were adjusted according to the Inspection Minutes dated 26 August 2024 of Ho
Chi Minh City Tax Department released to the Parent Company.

According to the current Law on Corporate Income Tax, the loss of any tax year is brought forward to
offset against the income for the maximum period of 5 years from year after the loss suffering year.
Deferred income tax assets are not recognized for these accounts since there is little possibility on the
availability of taxable income in the future against which these accounts can be used.

Short-term trade payables

Ending balance Beginning balance

Payables to related parties 10.254.789.221 42.750.000
Branch of Saigon Co.op — Co.opmart Cai Be - 40.000.000
Saigon Co.op 10.254.789.221 2.750.000
Payables to other suppliers 10.756.480.524 1.837.208.144
SDC Advertising Service and Trading Production

Company Limited - 336.166.186
FPT Smart Cloud Company Limited - 276.297.912
Thanh Phu Investment Construction Joint Stock

Company 5.427.465.969 -
Phuoc Thanh Construction Corporation 2.560.538.944 2
Other suppliers 2.768.475.611 1.224.744.046
Total 21.011.269.745 1.879.958.144

The Group’s balance of trade payables for acquisition of fixed assets is VND 7.845.853.532 (beginning
balance: VND 62.955.090).

The Group has no overdue trade payables.

Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget

Beginning balance Increase during the year Ending balance

Amount
Payables Receivables payable Amount paid Payables Receivables
VAT on local sales 1.105.995.853 - 4.624.334.690 (5.527.048.072)  203.282.471 -
Corporate income tax ~ 962.743.591 3.607.093.380  5.590.804.054 (5.100.954.582)  893.899.033 3.048.399.350
Personal income tax 713.612.463 - 4319.738.812 (4.486.174.191)  547.177.084 -
Property tax - - 37.996.957 (37.996.957) - -
Land rental - 2.219.271.084 5.924.172.125 (3.704.901.041) - -
Other taxes - - 132.048.245 (12.700.000)  119.348.245 -
Total 2.782.351.907 5.826.364.464 20.629.094.883 (18.869.774.843) 1.763.706.833 3.048.399.350

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 31
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j 718

18.
18a.

Value added tax (VAT)
The Group has paid VAT in accordance with the deduction method. The VAT rates applied are as
follows:

- Merchandise 3 Not subject to tax, 5%, 10%
- Services, investment properties, etc. : 10%

During the year, the Group applies the value added tax rate of 8% to some goods and services according
to the Government’s Decrees No. 94/2023/ND-CP dated 28 December 2023 and No. 72/2024/ND-CP
dated 30 June 2024 guiding the Resolutions No. 110/2023/QH15 dated 29 November 2023 and No.
142/2024/QHL1S dated 29 June 2024 of the Standing Committee of the National Assembly.

Corporate income tax
The Group has to pay corporate income tax on taxable income at the rate of 20%.

Estimated corporate income tax payable of each Group company is as follows:

Current year Previous year
Saigon Co.op Investment Development Joint Stock
Company 558.694.030 -
Saigon - Ben Tre Trading One Member Company
Limited 4.329.755.296 3.665.527.594
Saigon - Pleiku Services Trading One Member
Limited Company 702.354.728 938.285.237
Total 5.590.804.054 4.603.812.831

Determination of corporate income tax liability of the Group companies is based on currently applicable
regulations on tax. Nonetheless, these tax regulations may change from time to time and tax regulations
applicable to variety of transactions can be interpreted differently. Hence, the tax amounts presented in
the Consolidated Financial Statements can be changed upon the inspection of tax authorities.

Land rental
The annual land rental is paid according to the notices of the tax authority.

Property tax
The property tax is paid according to the notices of the tax department.

Other taxes
The Group has declared and paid these taxes in line with the prevailing regulations.

Payables to employees
This item reflects the salary and bonus payable to the Group’s employees.

Other payables
Other short-term payables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Trade Union’s expenditure - 89.382.512
Receipt of short-term deposits 2.351.760.249 2.407.270.763
Dividends payable 364.276.290 376.911.870
Payables for sales amount collected on behalf of the
rented counters 2.561.836.002 3.249.686.706
Other short-term payables 391.836.893 379.697.600
Total 5.669.709.434 6.502.949.451

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 32
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18b.

(@

18c.

19.

20.

21.
21a.

21b.

Other long-term payables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Payables to related party 2.170.000.000 2.170.000.000
Co.op Mart Vinh Phuc Company Limited - payables
for receipt of long-term deposits 2.170.000.000 2.170.000.000
Payables to other organizations and individuals 109.152.903.336 108.827.145.176
Nova An Phu Company Limited — deposit for contract
performance @ 102.500.000.000 102.500.000.000
Deposit for leasing premises received from other
organizations 6.652.903.336 6.327.145.176
Total 111.322.903.336 110.997.145.176

This is the amount deposited by Nova An Phu Company Limited to perform the Cooperation Contract
for the development of Housing - Trade and Service Complex Project in the Developed Urban Area in
An Phu Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City (see Note No. V.13).

Overdue debts
The Group has no other overdue payables.

Bonus and welfare funds

Increase due to Disbursement
Beginning appropriation Other during the Ending
balance from profit increases year balance
Bonus and welfare funds 5.660.034.387 177.757.841 30.370.000 (425.352.301) 5.442.809.927
Bonus fund for the
Executive Board 6.023.654.882 1.422.062.724 - - 7.445.717.606
Total 11.683.689.269 1.599.820.565 30.370.000 (425.352.301) 12.888.527.533

Deferred income tax liabilities ,
Deferred income tax liabilities are in relation to consolidated transactions (reversal of provisions for
investments in associates). Details are as follows:

Current year Previous year
Beginning balance 1.564.356.193 1.759.307.755
Inclusion into operation results 1.045.196.262 (194.951.562)
Ending balance 2.609.552.455 1.564.356.193

The corporate income tax rate used for determining deferred income tax liabilities is 20%.
Owner’s equity

Statement of changes in owner’s equity

Information on changes in owner’s equity is presented in the attached Appendix 2.

Details of owner’s capital

Ending balance Beginning balance
Saigon Co.op 960.927.960.000 960.927.960.000
Shareholders 39.072.040.000 39.072.040.000
Total 1.000.000.000.000 1.000.000.000.000

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

21c. Shares

Ending balance Beginning balance
Number of shares registered to be issued 100.000.000 100.000.000
Number of shares sold to the public 100.000.000 100.000.000
- Common shares 100.000.000 100.000.000
- Preferred shares - -
Number of shares repurchased - -
- Common shares - -
- Preferred shares - -
Number of outstanding shares 100.000.000 100.000.000
- Common shares 100.000.000 100.000.00¢
- Preferred shares -

Face value per outstanding share: VND 10.000.

21d. Profit distribution
During the year, the Parent Company distributed the profit of 2023 in accordance with the Resolutio
No. 01/2024/NQ/DHDCD dated 21 May 2024 of 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as

follows:

VND
o  Appropriation for investment and development fund 3 8.887.892.026
e  Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds : 177.757.841
e Appropriation for fund of the Board of Directors : 1.422.062.724

22. Off-consolidated balance sheet items '

22a. External leased assets “%
The total minimum lease payments in the future for leasing contracts are classified by terms as follows: AN
Ending balance Beginning balance /..
1 year or less 12.481.164.403 12.063.453.043
More than 1 year to S years 49.924.657.612 48.253.812.172
More than 5 years 205.852.421.399 215.075.437.194
Total 268.258.243.414 275.392.702.409

The Group leases land and some premises in form of operating lease. The lease contracts are effective
from 2007 to 2054 and can be extended. The leasing rate is increased annually in line with the market
leasing rate.

22b. Foreign currencies

As of the balance sheet date, cash and cash equivalents include USD 674,68 (beginning balance: USD
660,88).

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 34



SAIGON CO.OP INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 199-205 Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Pham Ngu Lao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

1.  Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services

la. Gross revenue

Revenue from sales of merchandise
Revenue from leasing premises and assets
Revenue from sales of investment properties @

Revenue from project management and supermarket
network development consultancy

Other revenues
Total

Income from leasing investment properties

Direct expenses related to generation of leasing
income

Income from investment properties

Current year

Previous year

4.112.010.534
69.227.668.862
5.756.406.360

19.634.724.101

319.507.359

2.495.966.795
56.935.473.546
5.756.406.360

21.814.462.994
313.769.360

99.050.317.216

87.316.079.055

Income and expenses in relation to investment properties for lease are as follows:

Current year

Previous year

5.756.406.360

3.308.103.302

5.756.406.360

5.321.529.188

2.448.303.058

434.877.172

1b.  Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services to related parties
Apart from sales of goods and service provisions to associates presented in Note No. V.2¢, the Group
also has sales of goods and service provisions to related parties which are not associates as follows:

Saigon Co.op

Leasing premises and assets

Provision of management consultancy service
Provision of operation service

Co.op Mart Vinh Phuc Company Limited
Leasing premises and assets

Saigon - Van Dong One Member Limited Company
Provision of management consultancy service
Fees for using equipment and software

Branch of Saigon Co.op — Co.opmart Ben Tre
Supply of power, water, waste fees

2. Costs of sales

Costs of merchandise sold

Costs of leasing premises and assets
Expenses for trading investment properties
Costs of other service provisions

Total

Current year

Previous year

20.059.392.816
5.904.064.939
1.223.881.714

5.806.606.080

3.338.333.800
319.507.359

134.355.802

Current year

19.120.133.256
3.491.817.871

5.526.892.800

3.215.262.073
313.769.360

144.691.142

Previous year

2.981.345.299
30.010.121.720
3.308.103.302
840.000.000

1.762.140.191
17.171.637.958
5.321.529.188

37.139.570.321

24.255.307.337

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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Financial income

Bank deposit interest
Dividends, profit received
Loan interest

Total

Financial expenses

Current year

Previous year

18.935.575.814 27.314.345.681
610.200.000 305.100.000
832.273.974 998.449.646
20.378.049.788 28.617.895.327

This item reflects provision for impairments of trading securities.

Selling expenses

Expenses for employees

Materials, packages

Tools

Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

Total

General and administration expenses

Expenses for employees

Office supplies and stationery
Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets

Taxes, fees and legal fees

Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) for doubtful debts
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

Total

Current year

Previous year

6.653.630.868

7.275.062.912

9.977.000 11.903.414
207.385.612 145.495.710
1.451.621.389 1.436.374.467
7.980.776.470 8.154.681.377
4.564.967.893 2.676.472.799
20.868.359.232 19.699.990.679

Current year

Previous year

33.699.596.361
650.588.734
1.582.826.603
167.507.009
(297.436.939)
4.745.760.852
13.753.628.912

34.899.801.601
420.754.132
1.242.586.486
176.174.733
15.933.240.000
3.645.595.544
9.844.082.662

54.302.471.532

66.162.235.158

Other income

Proceeds from liquidation and disposal of fixed assets
Income from the 10" Anniversary Celebration of Sense
City .

Fines for violation of the contract

Other income

Total

Current year

Previous year

144.098.233

1.059.902.032

278.315.698 65.080.080
115.697.936 1.029.707.206
1.598.013.899 1.094.787.286

Other expenses

Loss from site demolition of building at No. 102 Nam
Ky Khoi Nghia

Support for charity work

Tax fines and tax collected in arrears

Other expenses

Current year

Previous year

81.314.200.364

Total

592.805.000 889.720.601
159.768.781 482318
446.938.192 286.168.129
1.199.511.973 82.490.571.412

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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9. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax arising from reversal of deferred
income tax assets

Deferred income tax arising from increase in deferred
income tax liabilities

Total

10. Earnings per share
10a. Basic/diluted earnings per share

Accounting profit after tax of the Parent Company’s
shareholders

Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds ©
Appropriation for bonus to the Executive Board ©
Increases/(decreases) in accounting profit used to
determine profit distributed to ordinary equity
holders

Profit used to calculate basic/diluted earnings per
share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year

Basic/diluted earnings per share

Current year

Previous year

(23.189.158)

1.045.196.262

196.123.681

(194.951.562)

1.022.007.104

1.172.119

Current year Previous year
66.854.718.904 2.670.230.540
(567.720.352) (177.757.841)

(4.541.762.814)

(1.422.062.724)

61.745.235.738

100.000.000

1.070.409.975

100.000.000

617

11

(M

The basic/diluted earnings per share of the previous year were re-calculated due to the deduction of the
appropriated amounts for bonus and welfare funds and bonus to the Executive Board on the basis of
2023 profit distribution plan according to the Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ/PHDCD dated 21 May 2024
of 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The appropriated amounts for bonus and welfare funds and bonus to the Executive Board when
determining the profit for calculating basic/diluted earnings per share of the current year are temporarily
calculated on the basis of the appropriation rate of these funds in 2023 profit distribution plan as
mentioned above.

There are no transactions over the common share or potential common share from the balance sheet date

10b. Other information
until the date of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
11.  Operating costs by factors

Materials and supplies

Labor costs

Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

Total

Current year

Previous year

867.951.346
40.353.227.229
9.447.260.380
40.471.949.956
18.188.666.875

578.153.256
42.174.864.513
9.848.189.647
27.124.215.373
28.629.970.194

109.329.055.786

108.355.392.983

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements
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VII. OTHER DISCLOSURES

8

2a.

Operating leased assets

As at the balance sheet date, the total minimum rental can be collected in the future from irrevocable
operating leases is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
1 'year or less 52.050.392.332 51.020.700.427
More than 1 year to 5 years 124.479.244.196 160.501.100.772
More than 5 years 72.699.600.138 75.185.062.848
Total 249.229.236.666 286.706.864.047

The above operating lease payments include:

e The total rental for the premises at SOIVA Plaza, Me Linh Street, Khai Quang Ward, Vinh Yen
City, Vinh Phuc Province. The lease term is from 01 January 2012 to 01 November 2036 inclusively.

o The total rental for the premises at No. 253 Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 7, District 3, Ho Chi Minh
City. The lease term is from 18 December 2022 to 17 December 2025 inclusively.

e The total rental for the premises at SenseMarket Cai Be, Land Lot No. 1436, Map No. 35, Zone 2,
Cai Be Town, Cai Be District, Tien Giang Province. The lease term is from 30 December 2023 to
29 December 2026 inclusively.

e The total rental for the premises at Sense City Ben Tre, No. 26A Tran Quoc Tuan Street, Ward 4,

Ben Tre City, Ben Tre Province. The lease term is from 01 January 2024 to 18 January 2036
inclusively.

Transactions and balances with related parties
The Group’s related parties include the key managers, their related individuals and other related parties.

Transactions and balances with the key managers and their related individuals
The key managers include the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Parent Company (the

Board of Management and the Chief Accountant). The key managers’ related individuals are their close
family members.

Transactions with the key managers and their related individuals

The Group has no sales of goods and service provisions and no other transactions with the key managers
and their related individuals.

Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals
The Group has no receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals.

Remuneration of the key managers and the Supervisory Board

: Total
Salary Bonus Compensation  Others remuneration

Current year
Mr. Vu Anh Khoa — Chairman - - 80.000.000 - 80.000.000

Mr. Pham Trung Kien — Board

Member cum Chief Executive Officer 1.837.896.000 305.330.665  40.000.000  1.050.000 2.184.276.665
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang — Board

Member - - 40.000.000 - 40.000.000
Mr. Le Truong Son — Board Member - - 40.000.000 - 40.000.000

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 38
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Total
Salary Bonus  Compensation  Others  remuneration
Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy — Board
Member cum Deputy Chief Executive
Officer (resigned on 21 May 2024) 639.978.689 1.000.000 15.483.871 450.000  656.912.560
Mr. Pham Hoang An — Deputy Chief
Executive Officer 1.379.091.000  185.572.692 - 600.000 1.565.263.692

Mr. Phan Thanh Duy — Board Member
cum Deputy Chief Executive Officer ~ 2.008.370.713  241.032.801 24.516.129 400.000 2.274.319.643
Mr. Pham Xuan Phong — Chief

Accountant 999.816.285 131.983.140 - 1.100.000 1.132.899.425
Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh — Head of
Supervisory Board 628.312.000 78.114.515 40.000.000 900.000  747.326.515°

Mr. Truong Phan Hoang Thy — "Q

Supervisory Board Member - - 26.666.668 - 26.666.668 /c\w

Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh — 2. 10

Supervisory Board Member - oo 26.666.668 - 26.666.668 N *
)

Total 7.493.464.687 943.033.813  333.333.336 4.500.000 8.774.331.836 \g‘
W\

Previous year

Mr. Vu Anh Khoa — Chairman - - 80.000.000
Mr, Pham Trung Kien — Board

Member cum Chief Executive Officer 1.752.236.792  546.684.993 40.000.000 600.000 2.339.521.785
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Thang — Board

80.000.000

Member - - 40.000.000 - 40.000.000
Mr. Le Truong Son — Board Member - - 40.000.000 - 40.000.000
Mr. Doan Tran Thai Duy — Board

Member cum Deputy Chief Executive

Officer 1.680.410.583  428.898.861 40.000.000 1.500.000 2.150.809.444
Mr. Pham Hoang An — Deputy Chief

Executive Officer 1.211.462.853  313.915.436 - 600.000 1.525.978.289
Mr. Pham Xuan Phong — Chief

Accountant 951.877.169  280.513.548 - 600.000 1.232.990.717
Mr. Nguyen Phu Khanh — Head of

Supervisory Board 590.205.524 176.877.913 40.000.000 900.000  807.983.437
Mr. Truong Phan Hoang Thy —

Supervisory Board Member - - 26.666.668 - 26.666.668
Mr. Nguyen Quang Tinh —

Supervisory Board Member - - 26.666.668 - 26.666.668
Total 6.186.192.921 1.746.890.751  333.333.336 4.200.000 8.270.617.008

2b.  Transactions and balances with other related parties
Other related parties of the Group include:
o Saigon Co.op - Shareholder holding 96,09% of charter capital.
o Associates (see Note No. V.2¢).
o Subsidiaries and associates of Saigon Co.op.

Transactions with other related parties

Apart from transactions with the associates presented in Note No. V.2¢ as well as sales of goods and
service provisions to other related parties which are not associates presented in Note No. VI.1b, the
Group also has the following transactions with other related parties which are not associates:

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 39
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Current year

Previous year

Saigon Co.op
Payment on Saigon Co.op’s behalf
Infrastructure using fees, power and water charges

412.486.693
6.082.680.501

1.007.589.860
1.843.968.000

Collection of capital support on Saigon Co.op’s behalf - 19.500.000
Leasing construction services 5.088.111.115 -
Purchase of vouchers 224.000.000 -
Branch of Saigon Co.op — Co.opmart Ben Tre

Purchase of merchandise 34.087.410 82.019.300
Power charges 310.568.360 238.408.560
Saigon - Van Dong One Member Limited Company

Receivables for performance of sales promotion

program 462.200.083 149.832.999
Sai Gon Co.op Distribution Company Limited

Purchase of merchandise 113.878.276 -
Sai Gon Co.op Cong Quynh One Member Company

Limited

Purchase of vouchers 618.900.000 358.700.000
Branch of Saigon Co.op — Co.opmart Cai Be

Purchase of merchandise 58.867.654 -
Sai Gon Can Tho Hotel One Member Limited Company

Purchase of merchandise, services 279.295.820 -
Co.opmart Ca Mau One Member Company Limited

Purchase of merchandise 35.390.952 -
Co.opmart Can Tho One Member Limited Liability

Company

Purchase of merchandise 27.9717.7178 -
Branch of Saigon Co.op - Co.opmart Nguyen Binh

Purchase of merchandise 13.848.704 -

The prices of services provided to other related parties are mutually agreed prices. The purchases of
merchandise and services from other related parties are done at the agreed prices.

Receivables from and payables to other related parties

The receivables from and payables to other related parties are presented in Notes No. V.3a, V.3b, V.5,
V.15 and V.18b.

The receivables from other related parties are unsecured and will be paid in cash. No allowances have
been made for the receivables from other related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

3.

3a.

3b.

Segment information

The Group’s segment information is presented according to business segments and geographical
segments. The primary reporting format is the business segments since the Group’s business operations
are organized and managed on the basis of the natures of its products, services provided.

Information on business segments

The Group has the following principal business activities:

e Consultancy: project management and supermarket network development consultancy.
o Leasing: leasing premises for sublease, leasing properties.

e Others: sales of goods, fees for using equipment and software.

Information on business segment of the Group is presented in the attached Appendix 3.

Information on geographical segment
All operations of the Group take place only in Vietnamese territory.

Subsequent events
Other than the results of the lawsuit presented in Note No. V.13, there are no other material subsequent
events which are required adjustments or disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

e
Ta Ngoc Thao Pham Xuan Phong \ Pham Trung Kien
Preparer Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer
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Appendix 1: Value of the Group’s ownership in joint ventures, associates

Saigon - Ca Mau Trading Service Company Limited

Saigon Cantho Trading Company

Saigon Co.op International Investment Company Limited

Co.op Mart Bien Hoa Supermaket and Trading Services Company
Limited

Vietsin Commercial Complex Development Joint Stock Company
Saigon - Xuan Oai Services Trading Limited Company

Dong Bac Commercial Center Development Investment Company
Limited

Saigon - Chau Doc Company Limited

i -

I —

Ta Ngoc Thao
Preparer
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Beginning balance

Gain or loss during the

year

Dividends, profit
distribution during the
year

Unit: VND

Ending balance

67.148.219.034
91.278.507.957
25.198.716.674

16.920.294.129
925.825.839.587
56.118.924.499

32.050.778.279
22.486.127.037

840.376.953
1.919.842.267
1.914.949.289

1.752.225.224

56.714.427.521
1.359.690.025

(245.153.998)
1.999.804.936

(2.352.000.000)

(2.225.945.760)
(70.066.620.029)

67.988.595.987
93.198.350.224
24.761.665.963

16.446.573.593
912.473.647.079
57.478.614.524

31.805.624.281
24.485.931.973

1.237.027.407.196

66.256.162.217

1.228.639.003.624

{IHN
INQ:

Pham Xuan Phong
Chief Accountant
4\| Il

N(
6

(74.644.565.789)

Pham Trung Kien
Chief Executive Officer
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Appendix 02: Statement of changes in owner's equity

Beginning balance of the previous year
Profit in the previous year

Appropriation for funds in the previous year
Dividend distribution in the previous year
Decrease due to dissolution of subsidiary

(391.464.503)

Unit: VND
Benefits of non-
Investment and controlling
Owner's capital development fund Retained earnings shareholders Total
1.000.000.000.000 837.216.326.572 501.084.678.760 733.456.919 2.339.034.462.251
- - 2.670.230.540 248.797 2.670.479.337
21.434.291.343 (24.435.092.131) (3.000.800.788)

(391.464.503)

Ending balance of the previous year

Beginning balance of the current year
Profit in the current year
Appropriation for funds in the current year

Ending balance of the current year

- - (356.209.792) (342.241.213) (698.451.005)
1.000.000.000.000 858.650.617.915 478.963.607.377 - 2.337.614.225.292
1.000.000.000.000 858.650.617.915 478.963.607.377 - 2.337.614.225.292

- - 66.854.718.904 - 66.854.718.904

- 8.887.892.026 (10.487.712.591) - (1.599.820.565)
1.000.000.000.000 867.538.509.941 535.330.613.690 - 2.402.869.123.631

Y

Ta Ngoc Thao
Preparer
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Appendix 3: Segment information according to business segments

Current period
Net external revenues

Net inter-segment revenues
Total net revenues

Segment financial performance
Expenses not attributable to segments
Operating profit

Financial income

Financial expenses

Gain or loss in joint ventures, associates
Other income

Other expenses

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Profit after tax

Total expenses on acquisition of fixed assets and
other non-current assets

Total depreciation/(amortization) and allocation of

Unit: VND
The information on financial performance, fixed assets, other non-current assets and remarkable non-cash expenses according to business segments of the Group is as follows:

Consultancy Leasing Other activities Deductions Total
19.634.724.101 74.984.075.222 4.431.517.893 - 99.050.317.216
2.795.063.413 - - (2.795.063.413) -
22.429.787.514 74.984.075.222 4.431.517.893 (2.795.063.413) 99.050.317.216
9.477.355.729 15.021.064.495 19.525.611 - 24.517.945.835
(37.778.029.704)
(13.260.083.869)
20.378.049.788
(305.100.000)
- 59.554.609.410 6.701.552.807 - 66.256.162.217
1.598.013.899
(1.199.511.973)
(5.590.804.054)
(1.022.007.104)
66.854.718.904
1.841.571.092 39.552.527.109 1.020.487.637 - 42.414.585.838
282.874.453 6.684.733.369 - - 6.967.607.822

long-term prepayments

Total remarkable non-cash expenses (except
depreciation/(amortization) and allocation of long-
term prepayments)
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Appendix 3: Segment information according to business segments (cont.)

Previous period

Net external revenues

Net inter-segment revenues
Total net revenues

Segment financial performance
Expenses not attributable to segments
Operating profit

Financial income

Financial expenses

Gain or loss in joint ventures, associates
Other income

Other expenses

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Profit after corporate income tax

Total expenses on acquisition of fixed assets and
other non-current assets

Total depreciation/(amortization) and allocation of
long-term prepayments

Total remarkable non-cash expenses (except
depreciation/(amortization) and allocation of long-
term prepayments)

45

Consultancy Leasing Other activities Deductions Total
21.814.462.994 62.691.879.906 2.809.736.155 - 87.316.079.055
3.133.802.505 - - (3.133.802.505) -
24.948.265.499 62.691.879.906 2.809.736.155 (3.133.802.505) 87.316.079.055
20.915.939.716 15.488.356.235 (43.039.822) (3.133.802.505) 33.227.453.624
(56.028.907.743)
(22.801.454.119)
28.617.895.327
(3.866.988.035)
- 68.732.277.986 17.989.517.254 - 86.721.795.240
1.094.787.286
(82.490.571.412)
(4.603.812.831)
(1.172.119)
2.670.479.337
1.436.258.700 2.330.387.600 - - 3.766.646.300
174.472.940 10.458.115.727 - - 10.632.588.667
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Appendix 3: Segment information according to business segments (cont.)

Assets and liabilities of business segment of the Group are as follows:

Total

164.001.008.721
2.400.035.174.161

2.564.036.182.882

36.231.629.805
124.935.429.446

161.167.059.251

174.010.925.363
2.308.803.361.086

2.482.814.286.449

17.727.079.572
127.472.981.585

145.200.061.157

Consultancy Leasing Other activities Deductions
Ending balance
Direct assets of segment 43.713.878.328 118.539.414.779 1.747.715.614
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Direct liabilities of segment 3.071.735.082 32.680.804.529 479.090.194
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities
Beginning balance
Direct assets of segment 42.423.335.766 130.613.165.236 974.424.361
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Direct liabilities of segment 655.494.050 16.602.404.487 469.181.035
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

inh City, 14 April 2025
— /

Ta Ngoc Thao Pham Xuan Phong Pham Trung Kien
Preparer Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer
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for tomorrow

A&C AUDITING AND CONSULTING CO., LTD.

www.a-c.com.vn

Head Office : 02 Truong Son St., Ward 2, Tan Binh Dist,, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam Tel: +84 (028) 3547 2972  kttv@a-c.com.vn
Branchin HaNoi  : 40 Giang Vo St, Dong Da Dist., Ha Noi City, Vietnam Tel: +84 (024) 3736 7879  kttv.hn@a-c.com.vn
Branch in Nha Trang : Lot STH06A.01, St No.13,Le Hong Phong Il Urban Area, Phuoc Hai Ward, Nha Trang City, Vietnam  Tel: +84 (0258) 246 5151  kitv.nt@a-c.com.vn

Branch in Can Tho :5-13 Vo Nguyen Giap St, Cai Rang Dist,, Can Tho City, Vietnam Tel: +84 (0292) 376 4995  kttv.ct@a-c.com.vn




		2025-04-15T17:49:04+0700
	CÔNG TY CỔ PHẦN ĐẦU TƯ PHÁT TRIỂN SÀI GÒN CO.OP




